
Form C 
Dunamis Charge, Inc. 

A Michigan Corporation 

Formed on March 26, 2020 

with a principal place of business at 

19785 W. 12 Mile Rd., Ste. 345 

    Southfield, MI 48076 

https://dunamischarge.com/ 

Is there a co-issuer? No. 

Regulation Crowdfunding Intermediary Funding Portal:  Rise Up Crowdfunding Portal LLC 
CIK number of intermediary:  0001898740  
SEC file number of intermediary: 007-00339 
CRD number, if applicable, of intermediary: N/A  
Amount of maximum compensation to be paid to the intermediary for conducting the offering: 
$5,000 plus 4% of the gross proceeds raised from the offering. 

Any other direct or indirect interest in the issuer held by the intermediary, or any arrangement for 
the intermediary to acquire such an interest: 1% fee based on the number of securities sold in the 
offering.  

Type of Security Offered: Convertible Note  
Price: Face Value 
Interest Rate: 10% 
Maturity Date: sooner of (a) the date on which all outstanding principal and unpaid interest 
is due and payable upon an Event of Default, as defined in the Convertible Note, or (b) the 
seventh anniversary of the Closing. 
Target Offering Amount: $10,000 
Oversubscription Accepted: Yes 
If yes, disclose how oversubscriptions will be allocated: First Come, First-Served Basis 
Maximum Offering Amount: $5,000,000 



Deadline to reach the target offering amount: 12 months from Offering Date. 
 
NOTE: If the sum of the investment commitments does not equal or exceed the target 
offering amount at the offering deadline, no securities will be sold in the offering, 
investment commitments will be canceled and committed funds will be returned.  
 

Current number of employees: 1 

 

 Most recent fiscal year-end: Prior fiscal year-end: 

Total Assets: $ $0 

Cash & Cash 
Equivalents: $25,899 $0 

Accounts 
Receivable: $0 $0 

Short-term 
Debt: $1,050 $50 

Long-term 
Debt: $2,740,785 $0 

Revenues/Sales: $0 $0 

Cost of Goods 
Sold: $0 $0 

Taxes Paid: $0 $0 

Net Income $25,899 $0 

Select the jurisdictions in which the issuer intends to offer the securities: 

AL, AK, AZ, AR, CA, CO, CT, DE, DC, FL, GA, HI, ID, IL, IN, IA, KS, KY, LA, ME, MD, 
MA, MI, MN, MS, MO, MT, NE, NV, NH, NJ, NM, NY, NC, ND, OH, OK, OR, PA, RI, 
SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VT, VA, WA, WV, WI, WY, B5, GU, PR, VI, 1V 

 



THE COMPANY 

1. Name of issuer: Dunamis Charge, Inc.  

ELIGIBILITY 

2.  ☑  Check this box to certify that all of the following statements are true for the issuer.  

·   Organized under, and subject to, the laws of a State or territory of the United States 
or the District of Columbia. 
·   Not subject to the requirement to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 
·   Not an investment company registered or required to be registered under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940. 
·   Not ineligible to rely on this exemption under Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act as 
a result of a disqualification specified in Rule 503(a) of Regulation Crowdfunding. 
·   Has filed with the Commission and provided to investors, to the extent required, the 
ongoing annual reports required by Regulation Crowdfunding during the two years 
immediately preceding the filing of this offering statement (or for such shorter period 
that the issuer was required to file such reports). 
·   Not a development stage company that (a) has no specific business plan or (b) has 
indicated that its business plan is to engage in a merger or acquisition with an 
unidentified company or companies. 

3. Has the issuer or any of its predecessors previously failed to comply with the ongoing 
reporting requirements of Rule 202 of Regulation Crowdfunding?  Yes ☑ No 

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY 

4. Provide the following information about each director (and any persons occupying a similar 
status or performing a similar function) of the issuer. 

Name Principal 
Occupation 

Main 

Employer 

Year 
Joined as 
Director 

Responsibilities Title 

Natalie King  President & 
Officer 

Dunamis 
Clean Energy 
Partners, LLC 

2020 oversee and 
record all 
management and 
policies 
concerning the 
finances, 
operations, and 

President, 
Treasurer, and 
Secretary 



growth of the 
company  

Business Experience of each Director for the past three (3) years . See below and also Exhibit 
D, Director & Officer Work History 

Name Title Employer Dates Responsibilities 

Natalie King  Founder & 
Chief Executive 
Officer 

Dunamis 
Clean Energy 
Partners, LLC 

2012-Present  oversee all aspects 
of the company, 
including product 
development, 
funding, personnel 
development, 
public branding, 
and all 
manufacturing, 
marketing, and 
operational 
activities. 

Natalie King Founder & 
Chief Executive 
Officer 

Dunamis 
Charge, Inc. 

2020-Present manage and 
navigate the 
company; ensure 
that all projects are 
completed on time 
and within budget; 
foster a positive 
work culture and 
develop the skills of 
fellow team 
members. 

 

OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY 

5. Provide the following information about each officer (and any persons occupying a similar 
status or performing a similar function) of the issuer. 

Officer Positions Held Year Joined as 
Officer 

Natalie King  President & Officer 2020 



Kimathi Booth Vice President of Energy 
Operations 

2021 

David Ellis Vice President of Engineering 
and Product Development 

2022 

 

Business Experience of each Officer for the past three (3) years. See Exhibit D, Director & 
Officer Work History.  
 

6. PRINCIPAL SECURITY HOLDERS:  

Natalie M. King is the sole shareholder of the Company and holds 100% of the authorized 
2,000,000 voting common stock.  

7. BUSINESS AND ANTICIPATED BUSINESS PLAN 

Describe in detail the business of the issuer and the anticipated business plan of the issuer. 

For a description of our business and business plan, please refer to the attached Appendix A, 
Business Description & Plan.  

RISK FACTORS 

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this offering 
unless you can afford to lose your entire investment. 

In making an investment decision, investors in this offering (“Investors”) must rely on their 
own examination of the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks 
involved. These securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state 
securities commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not 
passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document. 

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any 
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or 
completeness of any offering document or literature. These securities are offered under an 
exemption from registration; however, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission has 
not made an independent determination that these securities are exempt from registration. 

8. Discuss the material factors that make an investment in the issuer speculative or risky: 



In addition to the other information provided elsewhere, the Corporation believes that the 
following risk factors are the most significant for potential Investors and should be considered 
carefully in evaluating whether to make an investment in the Corporation. If any of the risks 
described in this document actually occurs, the Corporation may not be able to conduct its 
business as currently planned and its financial condition, operating results, and cash flows could 
be seriously harmed. The risks listed do not necessarily comprise all those associated with an 
investment in the Corporation. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the 
Corporation, or which the Corporation currently deems not as significant as those listed herein, 
may also have an adverse effect on the Corporation. Thus, investments in the Corporation may 
never be profitable and substantial losses may occur. Likewise, the securities being offered by 
the Corporation have not been submitted to any rating agency to obtain an opinion or rating of 
the risk of investment. This means that an investment in the Corporation is speculative and the 
exact return on investment is unknown.  
 
THIS IS A SPECULATIVE INVESTMENT 

The Investor must be willing and able to tolerate a total loss of its investment, as this is a 
speculative venture. Investments in private companies, particularly early to mid-stage private 
companies, involve a high degree of risk. The Corporation will be comparatively vulnerable to 
adverse developments such as rapid changes in technology, fluctuations of demand and prices 
and to marketing competition from larger, better established companies, as well as more 
vulnerable to catastrophic weather events or other “Acts of God,” wars, pandemics, epidemics, 
or other acts of force majeure.  
 
The Investor acknowledges that any projections, forecasts or estimates as may have been 
provided to the Investor are purely speculative and cannot be relied upon to indicate actual 
results that may be obtained through this investment; any such projections, forecasts and 
estimates are based upon assumptions which are subject to change and which are beyond the 
control of Corporation or its management. Investment in the Corporation may never be profitable 
and substantial losses may occur. The actual financial performance of the Corporation may not 
match its predictions which would mean that the Corporation may not generate expected returns. 
Actual returns may differ dramatically from expected returns. As such, an investment in the 
Corporation is suitable only for persons who can bear the economic risk for an indefinite period 
of time and who can afford to lose their entire investment.   
 
NO GUARANTEE OF RETURN 

No assurance can be given that the Investor will realize a substantial return on investment, or any 
return at all, or that the Investor will not lose a substantial portion or all of the investment. For 
this reason, the Investor should carefully read all materials provided by the Corporation in 
relation to the investment and should consult with an attorney, accountant, and/or business 
advisor prior to making any investment decision. 

RISK OF LITIGATION AND UNINSURED LOSSES 



If the Corporation is ever subjected to lawsuits or proceedings by government entities or private 
parties, the Corporation’s general liability insurance policy may not cover all of the resulting 
liability, costs and expenses. Instead, expenses, costs and liability would instead be borne by the 
Corporation and could harm its financial condition.  

TAX CONSEQUENCES MAY VARY 

No representation or warranty of any kind is made by the Corporation or its management team or 
advisors with respect to any tax consequences of any investment in the Corporation. The Investor 
should seek its own tax advice concerning the tax consequences of an investment in the 
Corporation. 

NO LEGAL OR FINANCIAL ADVICE 

In making an investment decision, the Investor must rely on its own examination of the 
Corporation and the terms of this offering, including the merits and risks involved. The Investor 
should consult its own counsel, accountant, financial advisor, or other professional adviser as to 
investment, legal, tax and other related matters concerning the Investor’s proposed investment.  

ADDITIONAL CAPITAL NEEDS 

The Corporation expects that it will need to raise additional capital simultaneously or subsequent 
to this offering in order to expand and continue operating its business. The Corporation is not 
working with an underwriter, placement agent or similar party, and so there is no guarantee that 
the Corporation will raise any particular amount in this current or other simultaneous offerings or 
in any subsequent (future) offerings. Also, there is no guarantee that, in such a scenario, such 
additional capital will be available on terms favorable to the Investor or at all.  

CERTAIN FACTORS MAY AFFECT FUTURE SUCCESS. 

Any continued future success that the Corporation might enjoy will depend upon many factors, 
including factors beyond the control of the Corporation and/or which cannot be predicted at this 
time. These factors may include but are not limited to defaults on loans that the Corporation has 
made; changes in or increased levels of competition, including the entry of additional 
competitors and increased success by existing competitors, as described further below; changes 
in general economic conditions and specific economic conditions in Detroit, MI, such as 
consistent supply chain pressures; barriers to electric vehicle adoption; limited selection of 
electric vehicle in production; increases in operating costs; the Corporation’s ability to obtain 
grant funding or other loans; and reduced margins caused by competitive pressures. These 
conditions may have a material adverse effect upon the Corporation’s business, operating results, 
and financial condition. Unforeseen changes in consumer attitudes, market dynamics, or 
regulations may also adversely affect the Corporation, and therefore negatively affect the 
investment of the Investor.  

 
EFFECTIVE USE OF PROCEEDS. 

The Corporation may revise the Use of Proceeds of this offering. Changes to or failure to use 
such proceeds effectively could harm the business and financial condition of the Corporation. 



THE CORPORATION’S SUCCESS DEPENDS ON THE PERFORMANCE OF ITS 
AFFILIATED COMPANY 

The success of the Corporation will depend, at least in part, on the continued performance of its 
Affiliated Company Dunamis Clean Energy Partners, LLC, which may provide opportunities for 
further investment into the Corporation. Any event materially affecting the performance of the 
Affiliated Company may have a material adverse effect on the Corporation. 

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

The Corporation has not filed any copyright, trademark or patent applications with the USPTO. 
Instead, the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation has filed copyright, trademark and patent 
applications (“intellectual property”) with the USPTO on behalf of the Corporation. The 
Corporation does not own this intellectual property. Rather, the Chief Executive Officer owns 
the intellectual property and has given the Corporation permission to use this intellectual 
property for the Corporation’s business purpose. The Corporation’s ability to compete against 
other businesses selling similar products depends in part on its ability to secure and enforce the 
rights to this intellectual property., However, the Chief Executive Officer has granted the 
Corporation a revocable license to the intellectual property. This means that the Chief Executive 
Officer has the ability to revoke the Corporation’s use of the intellectual property at any time and 
as a result, the Corporation risks a loss in profits, a reduction in its business operations and 
decreased financial stability. There is no guarantee that the Corporation will file any intellectual 
property applications with the USPTO or whether any such filings in the future will be approved 
by the USTPO, and even registrations that receive approval could subsequently be held invalid 
due to  Corporate conduct or challenges by third parties. Similarly, the Corporation could lose 
valuable trade secret rights if it fails to properly protect confidential information. Even if the 
intellectual property rights of the Corporation are valid or secure, enforcing those rights could 
involve costly legal processes that te Corporation may not be able to bring to a successful 
conclusion. As a result, the Investor risks losing all or substantially all of its investments due to 
the foregoing. 

KEY PERSONNEL 

The Corporation’s success substantially depends on the efforts of its Chief Executive Officer 
Natalie King. The Investor must rely upon the startup capital, management, judgment and skills 
of the CEO. The Corporation’s success also depends upon its ability to recruit, train, and retain 
other qualified management. The loss of the services of any of key personnel of both the 
Corporation, such as Natalie King, or the Corporation’s inability to recruit, train, and retain 
qualified management, may have a material adverse effect on the Corporation’s business and 
financial condition.  

LACK OF LIQUIDITY 

There is no guarantee that there will be a secondary market or exchange for the resale of 
Corporation’s Notes. The Corporation is not currently publicly traded, and there is currently no 
secondary market for the Notes. An investor seeking to sell their Note may have great difficulty 
in finding a buyer or may not find any buyers for the Notes at all. Furthermore, unless and until 



the Notes are registered, there will likely be restrictions on the resale of the Notes under federal 
and State securities laws.  

Any decision to become publicly traded will be at the discretion of the Corporation and its Board 
of Directors. Any investor in the Corporation’s Notes may have to retain their investment in the 
Corporation even if it is no longer financially desirable to do so. 

NOT REGISTERED WITH THE SEC AND UNRATED 

The Notes by the Corporation have not been registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (SEC). Instead, the offer and sale of these shares is made in reliance on an 
exemption from registration under Regulation Crowdfunding. In addition, the securities being 
offered have not been submitted to any rating agency to obtain an opinion or rating of the risk of 
investment. 

RISKS INHERENT TO MANUFACTURING AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS OF 
ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGERS AND ENERGY MANAGEMENT SERVICES 

A manufacturing corporation is defined as a corporation that is engaged in the production of 
some article, thing, or object, by skill or labor, out of raw material, or from matter which has 
already been subjected to artificial forces, or to which something has been added to change its 
natural condition. Manufacturing corporations are highly regulated by local, state, and federal 
regulatory bodies, including those concerning electric vehicle chargers and other energy 
management equipment and services. The Corporation’s electrical vehicle chargers are not 
regulated by any particular governing body, and other applicable rules enforced by local and 
State agencies as it regards workplace and consumer safety, and the authorization, licensing, and 
good manufacturing practices of the manufacture and sale of electric vehicle chargers. 
undetermined industry wide Reliability Standards that lead to inferior mechanical and electrical 
design and build of units may open the Corporation up to potential litigation, fines, or other 
sanctions pertaining to the production of its products.  

RISKS INHERENT IN THE SALE OF MANUFACTURING OF ANY OF THE RAW 
MATERIALS USED TO CREATE THE ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGERS 

The primary raw materials necessary to produce electric vehicle charges include lithium, nickel, 
cobalt, manganese, aluminum, copper and graphite. Rising energy costs and volatile raw material 
pricing have caused cost inflation across the entire value chain from mining to vehicles, which 
may affect the Corporation’s future success. Supply Chain shortages of certain electrical 
components, including but not limited to semiconductor chips, may cause long lead times for 
material delivery. Across the power and infrastructure industry, consistent supply chain pressures 
stemming from the pandemic have affected the Electric Vehicle charging market, specifically a 
lack of chips that are critical components of the charging infrastructure. Additionally, demand 
for the primary raw materials may increase so quickly in the next term that the supply chain 
could have difficulties keeping up. 

LIMITED EXPERIENCE IN ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGERS MANUFACTURING 

Although the Corporation’s CEO has been in the electric vehicle equipment business for 13 
years, respectively, the Corporation has only been working in the electric vehicle chargers 



product manufacturing industry since 2020. Thus, the Corporation’s experience in electric 
vehicle chargers manufacturing is limited. This limited experience may disadvantage the 
Corporation and pose a risk to the Investor where a portion or all of its investment may be lost.  

COMPETITION IN THE ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGERS AND ENERGY 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES INDUSTRY 

The electric vehicle chargers and energy management industry is highly competitive and could 
become even more competitive, affecting the Corporation’s sales, revenues, and profits. For 
example, additional competitors could enter the market or there could be increased success 
among existing competitors. The Corporation competes with other similar businesses, including 
competitors who may have greater access to capital, marketing, sales opportunities, and other 
resources. Specifically, the Corporation competes with ChargePoint, Inc., Autel, WeBox, Blink 
Charging, Enel X and Volta. Competition is rapidly growing in the industry, as many 
competitors have seen rapid financial and business growth within the last 2-3 years through IPO 
and SPAC offerings. There can be no assurance that the Corporation will be able to compete 
successfully, and such competitive pressures may affect the Corporation’s ability to earn profits. 
As a result, the Investor may lose a substantial portion or all of its investment. 

LIMITED TRANSFERABILITY OF SECURITIES 
 
The Investor should be fully aware of the long-term nature of their financial support of the 
Corporation. The Notes may be transferred only if certain requirements are satisfied as further 
described in Appendix B, Note Purchase Agreement, and Appendix B, Note. The Investor has 
represented to the Corporation that it is acquiring the shares for its own investment only and 
without a view to their immediate resale or distribution. 
 
THE COMPANY HAS NOT YET COMMENCED FULL OPERATIONS 
 
The Corporation was incorporated as a Michigan Business Corporation on November 23, 2020. 
Because the Corporation is still in the development stage, it has earned little revenues and has 
not produced any profits. There is no assurance that it will ever earn sufficient revenues or 
produce profits over time. As a fairly new enterprise, the Corporation is likely to be subject to 
risks its key personnel or management has not anticipated. This can result in the Investor losing 
all or substantially all of its investment in the Corporation.  
 
LITIGATION COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT THE COMPANY 
 
If the Corporation is involved in litigation or other similar proceedings or becomes the target of a 
regulatory investigation, such an event could be very costly, both because of the legal costs and 
because it would likely distract key personnel from their regular duties; and such an event could 
result in an adverse outcome with additional costs. Such an event could have a material adverse 
effect on the Corporation’s operations, which could negatively impact the Investor’s investment 
and the Investor may lose its entire investment.  
 
THE COMPANY MAY NOT BE ABLE TO LIQUIDATE ALL ITS ASSETS 
 



The Corporation intends to exist perpetually, but may liquidate and dissolve at sometime after 
the close of this offering by a court order, bankruptcy, or some other cause outside of the 
Corporation’s control. The board of directors and shareholders may also decide to liquidate the 
Corporation at such earlier time for various business reasons without consulting the Investors.   
 
There is a risk that the Corporation may at that time have assets that it is unable to liquidate. If it 
is possible to find a buyer for these illiquid assets, the market value of those assets may be 
substantially below the amount the Corporation invested in the assets. As a result, the 
Corporation may suffer a substantial loss on those assets, which would reduce the amount 
distributable to Investors. As a result, Investors may lose a portion of the value of their 
investment.  
 
 
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Form C and its Exhibits contain forward-looking statements. From time to time, additional 
written forward-looking statements may be made by the Corporation. These forward-looking 
statements may include projections of revenues, income or loss, capital expenditures, business 
relationships, financings, proposed financings or investments by third parties, product 
development, plans for future operations, and plans relating to products of the Corporation, as 
well as assumptions relating to the foregoing. These statements are based upon management’s 
current expectations, beliefs, and assumptions about future events, are other than statements of 
historical fact, and involve a number of risks and uncertainties. 

The words “believe,” “may,” “will,” “could,” “would,” “plan,” “expect,” “intend,” “anticipate,” 
“estimate,” “project” or the negative or plural of these words or similar expressions identify 
forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date the statement was made, but are not 
the exclusive means of identifying those statements. Forward-looking statements are inherently 
subject to risks and uncertainties, some of which are described above in this Form C, which 
cannot be predicted or quantified] Future events and actual results could differ materially from 
those set forth in, contemplated by, or underlying such forward-looking statements. In light of 
these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the forward-looking events and circumstances 
discussed in this Form C A may not occur, and actual results could differ materially and 
adversely from those anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements. 

You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. 
Except as required by law, neither the Corporation nor any other person assumes 
responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the forward-looking statements. The 
Corporation undertakes no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements 
for any reason after the date of this Form C and to conform these statements to actual 
results or to changes in its expectations. 

You should read this Form C and its Exhibits with the understanding that the 
Corporation’s actual future results, levels of activity, performance, and events and 
circumstances may be materially different from what the Corporation expects. 

 



THE INFORMATION PRESENTED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS WAS 
PREPARED BY THE COMPANY SOLELY FOR THE USE BY THE INVESTOR 
IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING.  NO REPRESENTATIONS OR 
WARRANTIES ARE MADE AS TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF 
THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN ANY OFFERING MATERIALS, AND 
NOTHING CONTAINED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS IS OR SHOULD BE 
RELIED UPON AS A PROMISE OR REPRESENTATION AS TO THE FUTURE 
PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY. 

You should read this Form C, including its Appendices, with the understanding that the 
Corporation’s actual future results, levels of activity, performance, and events and circumstances 
may be materially different from what the Corporation expects. 

INSTRUCTION TO QUESTION 8: Avoid generalized statements and include only those factors 
that are unique to the issuer. Discussion should be tailored to the issuer’s business and the 
offering and should not repeat the factors addressed in the legends set forth above. No specific 
number of risk factors is required to be identified. 

The Offering 

USE OF FUNDS 

9. What is the purpose of this offering? 

The purpose of this offering is to expand the Corporation’s operations and capacity to 
manufacture, market and distribute electrical car vehicle chargers.   

10. How does the issuer intend to use the proceeds of this offering? 

If we raise:   $10,000 
Use of Proceeds:   
 
$4,900 , (49%) of the proceeds will go towards paying salaries of existing employees/ 

$2,500 (25%) of the proceeds will go towards marketing and branding strategies; 

$2,500 (25%) of the proceeds will go towards research & developments and technological 
advancements; 

$400.00 (4%): Rise Up [funding portal]’s intermediary fee.  
 

If we raise:   $ 5,000,000 



Use of Proceeds:  
 

$1,500,000 (30%) of the proceeds will go towards building capacity through new staff hires, 
including but not limited to, legal services, bookkeeping services, and independent contractors; 

$1,250,000 (25%) of the proceeds will go towards paying salaries of existing employees and 
hiring new staff; 

$250,000 (5%) of the proceeds will go towards marketing and branding strategies; 

$500,000 (10%) of the proceeds will go towards research & developments and technological 
advancements; 

$250,000 (5%) of the proceeds will go towards existing facilities expenses; 

$50,000 (1%) of the proceeds will go towards improving new informational infrastructures, 
operations, and systems; 

$750,000 (15%) of the proceeds will go towards overhead and administrative expenses, including 
but not limited to, malpractice insurance, professional development, bank fees, and start-up and 
growth operations; and 

$350,000 (7%) of the proceeds will go towards rents and other leasing expenses;  

$200,000 (4%): Rise Up [funding portal]’s intermediary fee.  

INSTRUCTION TO QUESTION 10: An issuer must provide a reasonably detailed description of 
any intended use of proceeds, such that investors are provided with an adequate amount of 
information to understand how the offering proceeds will be used. If an issuer has identified a 
range of possible uses, the issuer should identify and describe each probable use and the factors 
the issuer may consider in allocating proceeds among the potential uses. If the issuer will accept 
proceeds in excess of the target offering amount, the issuer must describe the purpose, method 
for allocating oversubscriptions, and intended use of the excess proceeds with similar specificity. 
Please include all potential uses of the proceeds of the offering, including any that may apply 
only in the case of oversubcriptions. If you do not do so, you may later be required to amend 
your Form C.  

DELIVERY & CANCELLATIONS 

11.  

(a) Attach “testing the waters” materials, if used. None. 
(b) How will the issuer complete the transaction and deliver securities to the investors?  

If we reach our target offering amount prior to the stated deadline, we may conduct an early or 
intermediate closing of the offering if we provide notice about the new offering deadline at least 



five (5) business days prior to the new offering deadline (absent a material change that would 
require an extension of the total offering and reconfirmation of the investment commitment). The 
crowdfunding intermediary will notify investors if we conduct an early closing. Thereafter, we 
may conduct an additional closing at our discretion on the deadline date or until we reach our 
total maximum or oversubscribed offering amount of $5,000,000. 

We are required to amend this offering document called the Form C during the offering period 
and prior to the offering deadline in order to reflect material changes. Material changes include, 
but are not limited to, any changes to the share price, offering maximum, offering deadline, or 
any significant changes to ownership or voting powers.  

The following describes the process to invest in the Corporation, including how the Corporation 
will complete an Investor’s transaction and deliver securities to the investor. 

1. Investor Commitment. The Investor will electronically sign and deliver a Note
Purchase Agreement, attached hereto and made a part hereof, to the Corporation through the
crowdfunding intermediary, which will bind its investment commitment to Corporation
(except that the Investor has until 48 hours prior to the target offering deadline to cancel its
investment as further described in Item 12 herein).
2. Acceptance of the Investment. Once the Note Purchase Agreement is complete, the
Investor's commitment will typically be recorded within a few minutes on the crowdfunding
intermediary’s portal. After the target offering deadline or within five (5) days of the
Investor’s signing, whichever is later, and save for any material changes to the offering
which would require an extension in the target offering deadline, the Note Purchase
Agreement will be countersigned electronically by the Corporation. The executed Note
Purchase Agreement will then be sent to the Investor via email, and will also be available to
download on the crowdfunding intermediary’s portal.
3. Investor Transfer of Funds. Upon receiving confirmation that an investment has been
accepted, the Investor will be responsible for transferring funds from a source that is
accepted by the crowdfunding intermediary into an escrow account held with a third party
bank on behalf of the Corporation.
4. Progress of the Offering. The Corporation, through the crowdfunding intermediary,
will provide Investors with periodic email updates on the progress of the offering, including
total amounts raised at any given time, and will be notified by email and through the
crowdfunding intermediary when the target offering, and the oversubscribed amount is met.
5. Closing: Original Deadline. Unless we meet the target offering amount early, Investor
funds will be transferred from the escrow account to the Corporation on the deadline date
identified in the Cover Page to this Form C.
6. Early Closings. If the target offering or oversubscribed amount is met prior to the
original deadline date, we may close the offering earlier, but no less than 21 days after the
date on which information about the Corporation, including this Form C, is posted on the
crowdfunding intermediary portal.  The Investor will be provided notice of any early closing
by email at least five days prior and the Investor must reconfirm their investment
commitment within five business days of receipt of this notice. At the time of the early
deadline and upon reconfirmation of the Investor, Investor funds will be transferred to the
Corporation from the escrow account, provided that the target offering amount is still met



after any prior Investor cancellations and at the time of the new offering deadline, the 
Corporation continues to meet or exceeds the target offering amount.  
7.     Book Entry. Investments may be in book entry form. This means that the Investor may 
not receive a certificate representing his or her investment. Each investment will be 
recorded in the Corporation’s books and records, as well as on the crowdfunding 
intermediary portal. 

12. How can an investor cancel an investment commitment? 

NOTE: Investors may cancel an investment commitment until 48 hours prior to the 
deadline identified in these offering materials.  

An Investor’s right to cancel. An Investor may cancel his or her investment commitment at any 
time until 48 hours prior to the offering deadline. 

Investors may cancel an investment commitment until 48 hours prior to the deadline for the 
target offering amount as identified on the cover page by going through the crowdfunding 
intermediary. The crowdfunding intermediary will notify the Investors when the target offering 
amount has been met. 

If an investor does not cancel an investment commitment before the 48-hour period prior to the 
offering deadline, the funds will be released to the Corporation upon closing of the offering and 
the investor will receive securities in exchange for his or her investment.  

If there is a material change to the terms of the offering or the information provided to the 
Investor about the offering and/or the Corporation, the Investor will be provided notice of the 
change and must reconfirm their investment commitment within five (5) business days of receipt 
of the notice. If the Investor does not reconfirm, they will receive notifications from the 
crowdfunding intermediary disclosing that the commitment was canceled, the reason for the 
cancellation, and the refund amount that the investor is required to receive. If a material change 
occurs within five business days of the maximum number of days the offering is to remain open, 
the offering will be extended to allow for a period of five (5) business days for the investor to 
reconfirm. 

If the Investor cancels his or her investment commitment during the 48- hour period when 
cancellation is permissible, or does not reconfirm a commitment in the case of a material change 
to the investment, or if the offering does not close, all of the Investor’s funds will be returned 
within five business days. 

The Corporation’s right to cancel. The Investor will sign a Note Purchase Agreement that 
provides that the Corporation may accept or reject any investment commitment, in whole or in 
part. This means that the Corporation may sell to the Investor a Note valued lower than what 
Investor subscribes to purchase or may decline to sell a Note to the Investor at all. If the 
Corporation accepts the Investor’s subscription, in whole or in part, this Agreement will 
constitute an irrevocable commitment by the Investor to purchase the Note, and a copy of this 
Agreement will be executed by the Corporation and returned to the Investor. If the Corporation 
rejects Investor’s subscription in whole or in part, the Corporation will return the payment 



tendered for any unissued portion of the subscription submitted prior to the execution of this 
Agreement by the Corporation. 

If the sum of the investment commitments from all investors does not equal or exceed the target 
offering amount at the time of the offering deadline, no securities will be sold in the offering, 
investment commitments will be canceled and committed funds will be returned. 

Ownership and Capital Structure 

THE OFFERING 

13. Describe the terms of the securities being offered.

See exact security attached as Appendix B, Note. 

14. Do the securities offered have voting rights?

No. 

15. Are there any limitations on any voting or other rights identified above?

Investors will have no informational rights. The Company has a Right of First Refusal (ROFR) 
to purchase any Note that any Investor proposes to sell, transfer, gift, pledge, assign, distribute, 
encumber or otherwise dispose of to a third party, except for transfers which are part of an 
inheritance.  The Company’s ROFR may be assignable by the Company to any other Investor in 
this offering. The Note is unsecured.

16. How may the terms of the securities being offered be modified? 

The terms of the securities may be amended (for the purposes of this Question 16, the term 
“amendment” includes modification) by amending the document in which the term appears, 
which is either the Note Purchase Agreement or the Note. 

The Note Purchase Agreement and the Note may be amended (either generally or in a particular 
instance and either retroactively or prospectively) only with the written consent of the parties.  

If there is any material amendment to the Note Purchase Agreement or the Note during this 
offering, the Corporation must amend this Form C by filing with the SEC a Form C/A disclosing 
the amendment. The Investor will then be notified of the amendment and will have five days to 
reconfirm the Investor’s investment commitment. If the Investor does not reconfirm their 
commitment within that time period, the Investor’s commitment will be canceled.  

RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER OF THE SECURITIES BEING OFFERED: 



The securities being offered may not be transferred by any purchaser of such securities during 
the one year period beginning when the securities were issued, unless such securities are 
transferred: 

�� to the issuer;
�� to an accredited investor;
�� as part of an offering registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission; or
�� WR D PHPEHU RI WKH IDPLO\ RI WKH SXUFKDVHU RU WKH HTXLYDOHQW� WR D WUXVW FRQWUROOHG E\ 

WKH SXUFKDVHU� WR D WUXVW FUHDWHG IRU WKH EHQHILW RI D PHPEHU RI WKH IDPLO\ RI WKH 
SXUFKDVHU RU WKH HTXLYDOHQW� RU LQ FRQQHFWLRQ ZLWK WKH GHDWK RU GLYRUFH RI WKH SXUFKDVHU 
RU RWKHU VLPLODU FLUFXPVWDQFH� 1RWZLWKVWDQGLQJ WKH IRUHJRLQJ� WKH ,QYHVWRU LV UHTXLUHG 
WR KROG WKH 8QVHFXUHG DQG 6XERUGLQDWHG 1RWHV IRU WKH OLIH RI WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ XQOHVV 
EHLQJ WUDQVIHUUHG WR WKH &RUSRUDWLRQ RU WR D PHPEHU RI ,QYHVWRU¶V IDPLO\� RU LQ 
FRQQHFWLRQ ZLWK WKH GHDWK RU GLYRUFH RI ,QYHVWRU�

NOTE: The term “accredited investor” means any person who comes within any of the 
categories set forth in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D, or who the seller reasonably believes 
comes within any of such categories, at the time of the sale of the securities to that 
person. 

The term “member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent” includes a child, 
stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse or spousal equivalent, 
sibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or 
sister-in-law of the purchaser, and includes adoptive relationships. The term “spousal 
equivalent” means a cohabitant occupying a relationship generally equivalent to that of 
a spouse. 

DESCRIPTION OF ISSUER'S SECURITIES 

17. What other securities or classes of securities of the issuer are outstanding? Describe the 
material terms of any other outstanding securities or classes of securities of the issuer

Class of 
Security 

Number (or 
amount) 
Authorized 

Number (or 
amount) 
Outstanding 

Voting Rights Other Rights 

Common Stock 2,000,000 2,000,000 Yes Informational 
Rights 

One vote per 
share held at any 
shareholders 
meeting, as well 



as one vote at 
any meeting of 
the Board of 
Directors for 
Sole Common 
Shareholder; 
 
Sole Common 
Shareholder 
shall maintain 
position as 
Director and 
President of the 
Board of 
Directors of the 
Corporation 
throughout the 
existence of the 
Corporation and 
may only be 
removed per the 
terms of the 
Shareholders 
Agreement. 
 
Sole Common 
Shareholder 
shall have the 
power to veto 
any decision by 
the Board of 
Directors 
through written 
notice of 
disapproval or 
through a vote in 
the negative as 
recorded in the 
minutes of the 
Corporation. The 
Sole Common 
Shareholder may 
veto a decision 
of the Board of 
Directors 
without 



submission to a 
vote by the 
shareholders at a 
shareholders 
meeting or prior 
notice thereof.  
 
The Corporation 
shall indemnify 
Sole Common 
Shareholder for 
any acts or 
omissions in 
performance of 
the Shareholders 
Agreement to the 
extent allowed 
by law and as 
provided in the 
Bylaws of the 
Corporation. 
 
 
 

 

18. How may the rights of the securities being offered be materially limited, diluted or qualified 
by the rights of any other class of security identified above? 

Investors have no voting rights and will have no voting rights. The voting shareholders of the 
Corporation may make decisions that harm the company’s financial condition and its ability to 
make payments on the Note, and the Investor will have no recourse to change those decisions.  

For example, voting shareholders could consent to a merger, a significant asset sale, or the 
election or removal of directors. Decisions made by the shareholders could also cause changes to 
the terms of the agreements governing the Corporation’s operations or cause the Corporation to 
engage in additional public offerings (including potentially a public offering). All of these 
decisions could harm the Corporation’s financial position and cause the Investor to lose all or 
part of its investment.  

19. Are there any differences not reflected above between the securities being offered and each 
other class of security of the issuer? 



 None. 

20. How could the exercise of rights held by the principal shareholders identified in Question 6 
above affect the purchasers of the securities being offered?

The principal shareholder(s) [have][has] more voting power than any other shareholder in the 
Corporation, and Investors in this offering, whether they have voting rights or not, will have to 
rely largely on the judgment of such shareholder(s). The Investor’s interests may conflict with 
those of the principal shareholder(s), and there is no guarantee that the Corporation will develop 
in a way that is optimal or advantageous to such an Investor. The principal shareholder(s) may 
make decisions with which an Investor in this offering disagrees and that negatively affect the 
value of the Investor’s Preferred Shares. Such Investors will have no recourse to change such 
decisions.  

For example, the principal shareholders may change the terms of the Articles of Incorporation or 
Bylaws, or change the management of the Corporation. As another example, the principal 
shareholders may make changes that affect the tax treatment of the Corporation in ways that are 
unfavorable to the Investor but favorable to them. As a final example, they may vote to engage in 
new offerings and/or to register certain of the Corporation’s securities in a way that harms the 
financial condition of the Corporation and the Corporation’s ability to make payment on the 
Notes.  

21. How are the securities being offered being valued? Include examples of methods for how 
such securities may be valued by the issuer in the future, including during subsequent corporate 
actions. 

The Notes may convert into equity in the future at a price and value in accordance with the 
methods and formulas outlined in Appendix B, Term Sheet.

The Notes are valued at face value and notes issued by the Corporation in the future will also be 
valued at face value.  

22. What are the risks to purchasers of the securities relating to minority ownership in the issuer?

The Investor will have no ownership in the Corporation. The Investor may have minority 
ownership in the Corporation should the Notes convert to equity in the future as further described 
in Appendix B, Term Sheet.  

23. What are the risks to purchasers associated with corporate actions, including additional 
issuances of securities, issuer repurchases of securities, a sale of the issuer or of assets of the 
issuer or transactions with related parties?

Additional issuances of securities. If the Corporation sells additional notes, this additional debt 
could affect the Corporation’s ability to make payment on the Notes. A sale of the issuer or of 



assets of the issuer. The Investor will have no say in a sale of the issuer or assets of the issuer.  If 
there is a sale of the Corporation or the assets of the Corporation, there is no guarantee that the 
Corporation will have funds to repay or provide a return to the Investors. Transactions with 
related parties. The Investor should be aware that there will be occasions when the Corporation 
may encounter potential conflicts of interest in its operations. On any issue involving conflicts of 
interest, the board of directors of the Corporation will be guided by their good faith judgment as 
to the Corporation’s best interests. The Corporation may engage in transactions with affiliates, 
subsidiaries or other related parties, which may be on terms which are not arm’s-length but will 
be in all cases consistent with the duties of the management of the board of directors. By 
investing in this offering, the Investor will be deemed to have acknowledged the existence of any 
such actual or potential conflicts of interest and to have waived any claim with respect to any 
liability arising from the existence of any such conflict of interest. 

24. Describe the material terms of any indebtedness of the issuer:

INSTRUCTION TO QUESTION 24: name the creditor, amount owed, interest rate, maturity 
date, and any other material terms. 

Creditor Amount Owed Interest Rate Maturity Date Other Material 
Information 

Dunamis 
Clean 

Energy 
Partners, 

LLC 

$������������ DV RI 
-DQXDU\ ��� ����� 

7% per annum 7 years after 
Closing of 
Offering 
(“Closing 

Date”) 

Holder is affiliated 
company Dunamis Clean 
Energy, LLC owned and 
managed by Natalie M. 
King. 

Holder will continue to 
issue the Company Note 
plus any accrued, but 
unpaid interest to the 
Investors in installments, 
on an as-needed-basis at 
various amounts and at 
varying dates until one of 
the following 
occurrences: (1) the date 
the Company garners 
$20,000,000 in gross 
revenues (“Solvency 



Date”); (2) the date the 
Company receives 
$500,000 in additional 
equity and/or debt 
financing (“Additional 
Financing Date”); or (3) 
three years from the 
Issuance Date, 
whichever is earlier 
(“Maturity Date”) 
 
The Company may 
prepay this Note without 
penalty charges. 

 

25. What other exempt offerings has the issuer conducted within the past three years?  

None.  

Offering Date 

 

 

Exemption 

 

 

 

 

 

Security Type 

 

 

 

 

 

Amount Sold 

 

 

 

 

 

Use of Proceeds 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26. Was or is the issuer or any entities controlled by or under common control with the issuer a 
party to any transaction since the beginning of the issuer’s last fiscal year, or any currently 
proposed transaction, where the amount involved exceeds five percent of the aggregate amount 
of capital raised by the issuer in reliance on Section 4(a)(6) of the Securities Act during the 
preceding 12- month period, including the amount the issuer seeks to raise in the current 
offering, in which any of the following persons had or is to have a direct or indirect material 
interest: 

1.      any director or officer of the issuer; 



2.      any person who is, as of the most recent practicable date, the beneficial owner of 20 
percent or more of the issuer’s outstanding voting equity securities, calculated on the basis of 
voting power; 
3.      if the issuer was incorporated or organized within the past three years, any promoter of 
the issuer; 
4.      or (4) any immediate family member of any of the foregoing persons. 

 
·     No. 

Specified Person 

 

 

 

 

 

Relationship 
to Issuer 

 Nature of Interest in 
Transaction 

 

 

Amount of 
Interest 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INSTRUCTIONS TO QUESTION 26: The term transaction includes, but is not limited to, any 
financial transaction, arrangement or relationship (including any indebtedness or guarantee of 
indebtedness) or any series of similar transactions, arrangements or relationships.  

Beneficial ownership for purposes of paragraph (2) shall be determined as of a date that is no 
more than 120 days prior to the date of filing of this offering statement and using the same 
calculation described in Question 6 of this Question and Answer format.  

The term “member of the family” includes any child, stepchild, grandchild, parent, stepparent, 
grandparent, spouse or spousal equivalent, sibling, mother-in-law, father-in-law, son-in-law, 
daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law of the person, and includes adoptive 
relationships. The term “spousal equivalent” means a cohabitant occupying a relationship 
generally equivalent to that of a spouse.  

Compute the amount of a related party’s interest in any transaction without regard to the 
amount of the profit or loss involved in the transaction. Where it is not practicable to state the 
approximate amount of the interest, disclose the approximate amount involved in the transaction. 

FINANCIAL CONDITION OF THE ISSUER 

27. Does the issuer have an operating history? 



·     Yes 
·     No 

28. Describe the financial condition of the issuer, including, to the extent material, liquidity, 
capital resources and historical results of operations. 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 

The Investor should read the following discussion and analysis of the Corporation’s financial 
condition and results of operations together with our financial statements and the related notes 
and other financial information included elsewhere in this offering. Some of the information 
contained in this discussion and analysis, including information regarding the strategy and plans 
for our business, includes forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You 
should review the "Risk Factors" section of this Form C (Question 8) for a discussion of 
important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results described in 
or implied by the forward-looking statements contained in the following discussion and analysis. 
How did the Corporation generate revenue in 2021, 2022, and 2023?  
 

- No revenue was generated in 2021,2022, or first three quarters of 2023.   
 

 
What were the Corporation’s expenses in 2021 2022, and 2023? 
 

- All of the Corporation’s expenses concerned working capital and operations, and were 
generated and paid for by Dunamis Clean Energy Partners, LLC.  

 
What were the Corporation’s capital resources in 2021,2022, and 2023  and what were the sources 
of those resources?  
 
In 2022, Capital was provided by Dunamis Clean Energy Partners, LLC by way of the Company 
Note (installment loan)  and capital contributions.  A $25,000 cash deposit was made by Natalie 
King in 2022 into Dunamis Charge, Inc’s account. In 2023, Dunamis Clean Energy, LLC issued $ 
1,505,736.47 in the form of an installment note. As of November 2023, the note totals $4,461,867 
per the terms of the Company Note.  
What accounts for your cash flows in 2021, 2022, or 2023? 
 
The Corporation did not have cash flows for 2020 and 2021. The Corporation did not have 
revenues for the first three quarters of 2023, but expects revenues for 4th quarter 2023 to amount 
to about $1,289,000 with a net loss of -38,350.  

-  
 
What were the Corporation’s financial successes and challenges in 2021 and 2022? 
 



- The Corporation did not have any financial successes or challenges in 2021. In 2022 the 
Corporation faced financial challenges due to supply chain sourcing and lead time issues 
in the industry.  

 
Have there been any material changes or trends in the Corporation’s financial condition and results 
of operations since 2022 
 

- Yes. In 2023, the Corporation was awarded an appropriation from the State of Michigan 
with a minimum of $2,500,000 and maximum of $10,000,000 (pending).  

In 2023, there was also an 8 month delay in production due to delays in obtaining recommended 
manufacturing certifications.  
What have the Corporation’s financial challenges and successes been since 2021 and 2022? 
 

- Except for the delayed production launch mentioned above, the Corporation did not have 
financial challenges and successes in 2021 and 2022 because the Corporation was not 
operational in 2021 and 2022.  

-  
 
How will results of operations and cash flows be different in the future?  
 

- The Corporation projected revenues for 1st quarter 2024 is $17,451,000 with a net loss of -
$2,475,000. The Company anticipates the production launch in 1st quarter 2024. 

 
How will the proceeds of this offering affect future results of operations and cash flows?   
 

- Proceeds of this offering will be used for marketing and sales, hiring of top tier engineers 
and c-suite executive management team, inventory and equipment, material procurement 
and research and development (R&D) for the Corporations second and third generation 
electric vehicle charger models.  
 

Are there other known, pending or available sources of capital? How will those sources affect 
future results of operations and cash flows? 
 

The Corporation currently has pending financial institution lending through lines of credit 
that will assist with operation costs. This line of credit will assist with working capital of 
the Corporation. 

 
Are the offering proceeds and any additional funding necessary to the viability of the business?  
 

- No. 
 
What is your current available cash and how quickly do you plan on using it?  
 



- The Corporation currently has $3,253 in cash available. The Corporation intends to use 
$3,253 to pay for necessary operational expenses. 

 
How quickly do you plan on using the offering proceeds?  
 

- The Corporation intends to use the offering proceeds immediately after the first closing of 
the offering and within the first eighteen (18) months of receipt after the total close of the 
offering..  

 
What financial successes and challenges do you anticipate in the future? 
 

- As described above, the Corporation anticipates operations and cash flows through electric 
vehicle (EV) charger production launch in the fourth quarter 2023, with increasing market 
penetration to result in positive EBITDA in the first 18 months of operations. The 
Corporation also projects revenues for fourth quarter 2023 to be $1,289,000 with a 
projected net loss at -38,350.  

-  
- In addition, the Corporation anticipates financial challenges that will require the Company 

to raise additional rounds of capital as production demands increase. 
 
Are historical operating results and cash flows representative of what investors can expect in the 
future? Please explain why or why not.    
 

- No, the Corporation expects to generate more revenues and have steady production in the 
future as the prior years experienced delays in production, thus halting revenues. 

INSTRUCTIONS TO QUESTION 28: The discussion must cover each year for which financial 
statements are provided. Include a discussion of any known material changes or trends in the 
financial condition and results of operations of the issuer during any time period subsequent to 
the period for which financial statements are provided. For issuers with no prior operating 
history, the discussion should focus on financial milestones and operational, liquidity and other 
challenges.  

For issuers with an operating history, the discussion should focus on whether historical results 
and cash flows are representative of what investors should expect in the future. Take into 
account the proceeds of the offering and any other known or pending sources of capital. Discuss 
how the proceeds from the offering will affect liquidity, whether receiving these funds and any 
other additional funds is necessary to the viability of the business, and how quickly the issuer 
anticipates using its available cash. Describe the other available sources of capital to the 
business, such as lines of credit or required contributions by shareholders. References to the 
issuer in this Question 28 and these instructions refer to the issuer and its predecessors, if any. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION 



29. Include financial statements covering the two most recently completed fiscal years or the
period(s) since inception, if shorter:

Refer to Appendix C, Financial Statements. 

Aggregate Offering Amount Financial Information 
Required 

Financial Statements 
Required 

$5,000,000 Financial Statements by 
Issuer and predecessors 

Financial Statements audited 
by a public accountant and 
accompanied with a signed 
accountant’s report  

STAKEHOLDER ELIGIBILITY 

30. With respect to the issuer, any predecessor of the issuer, any affiliated issuer, any director,
officer, general partner or managing member of the issuer, any beneficial owner of 20 percent or
more of the issuer’s outstanding voting equity securities, any promoter connected with the issuer
in any capacity at the time of such sale, any person that has been or will be paid (directly or
indirectly) remuneration for solicitation of purchasers in connection with such sale of securities,
or any general partner, director, officer or managing member of any such solicitor, prior to May
16, 2016:

(1) Has any such person been convicted, within 10 years (or five years, in the case of issuers,
their predecessors and affiliated issuers) before the filing of this offering statement, of any felony
or misdemeanor:

i. in connection with the purchase or sale of any security?
 Yes  No 
ii. involving the making of any false filing with the Commission?
Yes  No

iii. arising out of the conduct of the business of an underwriter, broker, dealer, municipal
securities dealer, investment adviser, funding portal or paid solicitor of purchasers of
securities?

 Yes  No 

(2) Is any such person subject to any order, judgment or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction, entered within five years before the filing of the information required by Section
4A(b) of the Securities Act that, at the time of filing of this offering statement, restrains or
enjoins such person from engaging or continuing to engage in any conduct or practice:

i. in connection with the purchase or sale of any security?



 Yes  No 
ii.         involving the making of any false filing with the Commission?  
 Yes  No 
iii.         arising out of the conduct of the business of an underwriter, broker, dealer, municipal 

securities dealer, investment adviser, funding portal or paid solicitor of purchasers of 
securities?  

 Yes  No 

(3) Is any such person subject to a final order of a state securities commission (or an agency or 
officer of a state performing like functions); a state authority that supervises or examines banks, 
savings associations or credit unions; a state insurance commission (or an agency or officer of a 
state performing like functions); an appropriate federal banking agency; the U.S. Commodity 
Futures Trading Commission; or the National Credit Union Administration that: 

      i.           at the time of the filing of this offering statement bars the person from: 
A.                 association with an entity regulated by such commission, authority, agency or 
officer?  
 Yes  No 
B.     engaging in the business of securities, insurance or banking?  
 Yes  No 
C.     engaging in savings association or credit union activities? 
 Yes  No 

ii.         constitutes a final order based on a violation of any law or regulation that prohibits 
fraudulent, manipulative or deceptive conduct and for which the order was entered within 
the 10-year period ending on the date of the filing of this offering statement?  

 Yes  No 

(4) Is any such person subject to an order of the Commission entered pursuant to Section 15(b) 
or 15B(c) of the Exchange Act or Section 203(e) or (f) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 
that, at the time of the filing of this offering statement: 

i.                  suspends or revokes such person’s registration as a broker, dealer, municipal 
securities dealer, investment adviser or funding portal?  

 Yes  No 
ii.         places limitations on the activities, functions or operations of such person?  
 Yes  No 
iii.         bars such person from being associated with any entity or from participating in the 

offering of any penny stock?  
 Yes  No 



(5) Is any such person subject to any order of the Commission entered within five years before
the filing of this offering statement that, at the time of the filing of this offering statement, orders
the person to cease and desist from committing or causing a violation or future violation of:

i. any scienter-based anti-fraud provision of the federal securities laws, including
without limitation Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act, Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act,
Section 15(c)(1) of the Exchange Act and Section 206(1) of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940
or any other rule or regulation thereunder?

 Yes  No 
ii. Section 5 of the Securities Act?
Yes  No

(6) Is any such person suspended or expelled from membership in, or suspended or barred from
association with a member of, a registered national securities exchange or a registered national or
affiliated securities association for any act or omission to act constituting conduct inconsistent
with just and equitable principles of trade?

 Yes  No 

(7) Has any such person filed (as a registrant or issuer), or was any such person or was any such
person named as an underwriter in, any registration statement or Regulation A offering statement
filed with the Commission that, within five years before the filing of this offering statement, was
the subject of a refusal order, stop order, or order suspending the Regulation A exemption, or is
any such person, at the time of such filing, the subject of an investigation or proceeding to
determine whether a stop order or suspension order should be issued?

 Yes  No 

(8) Is any such person subject to a United States Postal Service false representation order entered
within five years before the filing of the information required by Section 4A(b) of the Securities
Act, or is any such person, at the time of filing of this offering statement, subject to a temporary
restraining order or preliminary injunction with respect to conduct alleged by the United States
Postal Service to constitute a scheme or device for obtaining money or property through the mail
by means of false representations?

 Yes  No 

If you would have answered “Yes” to any of these questions had the conviction, order, 
judgment, decree, suspension, expulsion or bar occurred or been issued after May 16, 
2016, then you are NOT eligible to rely on this exemption under Section 4(a)(6) of the 
Securities Act. 

INSTRUCTIONS TO QUESTION 30: Final order means a written directive or declaratory 
statement issued by a federal or state agency, described in Rule 503(a)(3) of Regulation 



Crowdfunding, under applicable statutory authority that provides for notice and an opportunity 
for hearing, which constitutes a final disposition or action by that federal or state agency. 

 

No matters are required to be disclosed with respect to events relating to any affiliated issuer 
that occurred before the affiliation arose if the affiliated entity is not (i) in control of the issuer 
or (ii) under common control with the issuer by a third party that was in control of the affiliated 
entity at the time of such events. 

OTHER MATERIAL INFORMATION 

31. In addition to the information expressly required to be included in this Form, include: 

   (1) any other material information presented to investors; and 

   (2) such further material information, if any, as may be necessary to make the required 
statements, in the light of the circumstances under which they are made, not misleading. 

Please see the Appendices to this Form C as well as the Corporation’s web page on the 
intermediary’s website (such page is located at https://riseupcrowdfunding.com for any other 
material information provided to Investors in this offering.  

INSTRUCTIONS TO QUESTION 31: If information is presented to investors in a format, media 
or other means not able to be reflected in text or portable document format, the issuer should 
include: 

(a) a description of the material content of such information; 

(b) a description of the format in which such disclosure is presented; and 

(c) in the case of disclosure in video, audio or other dynamic media or format, a transcript or 
description of such disclosure. 

ONGOING REPORTING 

32. The issuer will file a report electronically with the Securities & Exchange Commission 
annually and post the report on its website, no later than: 

120 days after the end of each fiscal year covered by the report. 

33. Once posted, the annual report may be found on the issuer’s website at: 

The issuer must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements until: 



1.  the issuer is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange 
Act; 
2.  the issuer has filed at least one annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and 
has fewer than 300 holders of record and has total assets that do not exceed $10,000,000; 
3.  the issuer has filed at least three annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding; 
4.  the issuer or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section 
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any complete 
redemption of redeemable securities; or (5) the issuer liquidates or dissolves its business in 
accordance with state law. 
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EV for EVERYONE
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WHO WE ARE
• First African-American woman owned 

and MBE-certified EV charging company

• High-quality, EV charging solutions 

‘Made in America’

• Focused on Innovation and 

Sustainability

• Committed to Promoting Diversity and 

Inclusivity in the EV Industry
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Dunamis Charge: A 
Company of First’s

• First African-American woman owned EV charging
company

• First EV charging company to pursue urban
consumer market

• First EV charging company expected to achieve
profitability in record time
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Company Highlights

Spin-Off of Division of Successful 12-year-old 
Cleantech Company

Proven, Vertically-Integrated Business Model 
Lead by Experienced Management Team

Patent-Pending Vehicle-Agnostic Technology 
Provides Competitive Advantage

Strong relationships with OEMs, including 
Stellantis, Cummins, Toyota, DTE and Apple

Expects Positive EBITDA by 4Q03 Following
Deployments in 4Q03

Streamlined Operations and Self-Funding Key to 
Attractive Valuation and Lean Balance Sheet
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Annual gross revenue is
$5.9M with 155 total 

employees

Patent-Pending
EV Charger

Manufacturer

Best in-class LED
Lighting Manufacturer

Energy Management
specific to small,

medium & large sized 
business including

nonprofits

LEED®; ENERGY STAR
Certification/Partnership;
ISO 50001 Certification

(to standards)

Experienced Trade Alley
with more than 60 utility
programs throughout the

nation

Additional services
include energy audits and
modeling, energy-efficient

equipment retrofits and
energy-related incentive
procurement, including

utility rebates and 179D
tax credit

Endeavor Detroit 2021 Scale-up 
Initiative Cohort Member Ernst &
Young 2021 Entrepreneur of the

Year Apple Impact Accelerator
Inaugural Cohort

Stellantis National Black Supplier
Development Cohort

Cummins Care Supplier Dev. Program

Graduate, Tuck School
of Business at

Dartmouth “Building a
High Performing Minority

Business” Executive 
Education Program

More than a century of 
collective team

experience designing,
installing, and managing

renewable energy and
energy-efficiency projects

Corporate Achievements Since Launching 2010
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Highest Quality Level 2 Commercial 
EV Chargers

�� Real-time Remote Monitoring and
Control

�� Charging network and vehicle
agnostic

�� Made in USA by American workers; Extended
warranty

�� “Plug & Charge”, NFC, Smartphone app and/or QR Code
access

Level 2 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations

�� Energy Audits & Modeling / Engineering Analysis / Project
Management

�� Renewable Energy / Energy Storage / EVC System Integration &
Optimization

Energy Management Services

�� Energy-Efficiency-Centered Continuous Improvement Program
Development (ENERGY STAR. ISO 50001)

Vertically Integrated Domestic Supply Chain��
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EV Chargers and Services for 
Multiple Application

��

��

��

��

Fleet (Light/Medium Duty)
• Destination Zero
• Run-on-Less Depot Demonstration (NACFE)
• Fleet Management System Integration

Smart School Buses
• Blue Bird
• 155kWh systems (8hr

charging)

Facilities Implementation
• HQ, Factories,
• Distribution

Offices
• Dealer Officers

Branding
• White-Label
• Product / Feature

development
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Dunamis Charge:
Beyond EV Charging Products

��

Powering Operations with 100% Renewable Energy by 2030 and 
Net Zero Carbon Emissions by 2040

��

��

��

Energy Systems Integration
• Renewable Energy / Energy Storage Systems
• EV Infrastructure (220V – 480V systems)
• New Power systems (On/off road)

Fleet Management / Integration
• Duty Cycle / Scheduled Charging
• Fleet Management to EVC software Integration
• Rate Optimization

Energy Management - Facilities
• Energy Audits / Modeling / Analysis
• Energy-Efficiency Measure Recommendations
• Energy Management Program Development

Community / Environmental Impact
• Education / Training
• Collaboration, Partnerships, Support
• Workforce/Community Development
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Three-Pronged Approach in Jointly 
Empowering Disadvantaged Communities

��

��

��

Collaborative marketing efforts targeting 
disadvantaged communities

Expanding EV charging infrastructure in 
underserved areas

Joint Initiatives to Support Local Businesses and 
Promote Economic Growth
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COMPETITIVE LANDSCAPE
Company 

Name
Funding to 
Date

Est. Annual 
Revenue

Products/ 
Services

Pricing Customer Base Differentiators

$2.0M $41M 
(2023)

Level 2 AC EV Charge 
Stations; DCFC Charge
Stations (2023);
EM4EV
Services

$600 -
$3499; $14,995 -
$47,995; $155/hr 
Contract SOW

Home, Commercial, 
Fleet

Expert advice/guidance for 
Early Adopters (1st-time 
users); Incentive Experts; 
Patent-Pending technology; 
Charging Network agnostic

$882M
(12 rounds) $146.6M

Level 2 AC EVC; DCFC
Chargers; ChargePoint
Network

$699 - $8200;
$40,800 - $98,000
(est); $39.99/mo

Home, Commercial, 
Fleet

Early Market presence; 
ChargePoint Network

$227.6M
(4 rounds) $8.5M

Level 2 AC EVC; 
DCFC Chargers;

$549 - $3499;
$20,000 - $75,000
(est)

Commercial Property Partner agreements

$264M
(14 rounds) $47M (est)

Level 2 AC EVC; 
DCFC Chargers; 
Charging Towers

$999 - $5500;
$17,000 - $60,000
(est)

Large Retail Sites
Free Charging through 
advertising
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Q1 2023

Gen 2, Level 2 Commercial EV 
Charging Station “Soft” 

launch production

Q3 2023

Level 2 Commercial UL/ETL/ES 
complete / Pedestal Prototype

complete

Q4  2023

Level 2 Residential H-V
Production Start / Gen 1 DCFC 

Program Deployment

Q3 2023

Level 2 Commercial H-V 
Production Start / L2 Pilot 

Program Deployment Start

Q2 2023

Level 2 Commercial 3rd

Party / In-field Testing 
and Pilot Prog. Planning

PROGRESS
6HOI�IXQGHG DFWLYLWLHV IRU Level � FKDUJLQJ VWDWLRQ GHYHORSPHQW�

5	'� *URXQG�XS GHVLJQ� 3URWRW\SH EXLOGV DQG 8/�(7/ 	 (1(5*< 67$5 FHUWLILFDWLRQV

Q3 2024

Gen 2 DCFC NEVI U.S. 
Production Start
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Building a Strong and Lasting Partnership

• Working together to achieve sustainability goals

• Creating a more inclusive and diverse EV industry

• Demonstrating the power of collaboration and shared values.
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3/8* ,1:,7+

'81$0,6
1634 E. Grand Blvd.
Detroit, MI  48211
Phone:  248-327-0257
www.dunamischarge.com
nking@dunamischarge.com

Q & A
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CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE  

PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 

This Convertible Note Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made as of the date on the 
signature page (the “Effective Date”) by and between DUNAMIS CHARGE, INC., (the 
“Company”), a Michigan corporation, and the Subscriber on the signature page (“Purchaser” or 
“Subscriber”). 
 
WHEREAS, the Company is offering for sale a convertible promissory note of the Company 
substantially in the form attached to this Agreement as Appendix A and incorporated by reference 
herein (the “Note”), which is in the principal amount of $5,000,000 (the “Principal Amount”) and 
offered pursuant to an offering of Notes (as defined in the Note) under Regulation Crowdfunding 
(17 CFR 227.100 through 227.503) of Section 4(a)(6) of the U.S. Securities Act of 1933 (15 U.S.C. 
77d(a)(6))  “Securities Act”) and the applicable rules thereunder (the “Securities Laws”). The 
aforementioned offering of guaranteed convertible promissory notes shall hereinafter be referred to 
as the “Offering.”  
 
WHEREAS, Subscriber wishes to subscribe for and purchase the Note.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, for the reasons set forth above, and in consideration of the foregoing and of 
the mutual premises and covenants of the Company and Purchaser contained herein, and for other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Company and 
Purchaser agree as follows:  

1. Purchase. 

1.1 Purchaser hereby irrevocably subscribes for and agrees to purchase the Note, subject 
to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  

1.2 In order to purchase the Note, Subscriber must complete and sign this Agreement 
and the Note and return those documents to the Company along with payment in the amount of the 
Principal Amount. Subscriber shall electronically sign and complete the Agreement according to 
the Company’s instructions.  

1.3 Payment for the Note shall be received by Enterprise Bank and Trust (the “Escrow 
Agent”) from the Subscriber by payment via credit card, debit card, ACH or wire transfer of 
immediately available funds or other means approved by the Escrow Agent prior to the offering 
campaign deadline, in the amount as set forth on the signature page hereto. Subscriber funds will 
be held in escrow with Enterprise Bank and Trust until the Target Offering Amount of investments 
is reached. Upon each Closing, the Escrow Agent shall release such funds to the Company.  

1.4 Subscriber’s payment in the amount of the Principal Amount, and Subscriber’s 
execution of this Agreement and the Note constitute Subscriber's irrevocable agreement to 
subscribe for and purchase the Note, and such purchase and subscription shall be complete once 
the Company accepts Subscriber's payment and executes and delivers this Agreement and the 
Note.  

1.5 The Company may accept or reject any subscription, in whole or in part. This means 
that the Company may sell to Subscriber a Note valued lower than what Subscriber subscribes to 
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purchase or may decline to sell a Note to Subscriber at all. If the Company accepts Subscriber's 
subscription, in whole or in part, this Agreement will constitute an irrevocable commitment by 
Subscriber to purchase a Note for the accepted subscription amount, and a copy of this Agreement 
will be executed by the Company and returned to Subscriber.  

1.6 In the event that this Subscriber’s subscription is rejected in full, or the Offering is 
terminated, payment made by Subscriber to the Company via the Escrow Agent will be refunded 
to Subscriber without interest and without deduction, and all of the obligations of the Subscriber 
hereunder and under the Note shall terminate. To the extent that the subscription is rejected in part, 
the Company shall refund to Subscriber any payment made by Subscriber to the Company with 
respect to the rejected portion of the subscription without interest and without deduction, and all 
of the obligations of Subscriber hereunder and under the Note shall remain in full force and effect 
except for those obligations with respect to the rejected portion of the subscription, which shall 
terminate. 

1.7 To the extent that the funds are not ultimately received by the Company via Escrow 
Agent or are subsequently withdrawn by the Subscriber, whether due to an ACH chargeback or 
otherwise, the Note and this Agreement will be considered terminated.   

2. Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company hereby represents and 
warrants to Purchaser as follows: 

2.1 Authority; Binding Agreement. All action on the part of the Company, its 
managers, its officers, its members, and its directors necessary for the authorization, execution, 
delivery, and performance of this Agreement by the Company and the performance of the 
Company's obligations hereunder, including the issuance and delivery of the Note, has been taken. 
This Agreement and the Note, when executed and delivered by the Company, shall constitute valid 
and binding obligations of the Company enforceable in accordance with their terms, subject to 
laws of general application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, the relief of debtors, and general 
principles of equity that restrict the availability of equitable remedies, and subject to rights to 
indemnity and federal and state securities laws. 

 
2.2 Governmental Consents. Assuming the accuracy of the representations and 

warranties of Purchaser contained in Section 3 hereof, all consents, approvals, orders, or 
authorizations of, or registrations, qualifications, designations, declarations, or filings with, any 
governmental authority, required on the part of the Company in connection with the offer, sale, 
issuance, or valid execution of this Agreement or the Note, or the consummation of any other 
transaction contemplated hereby has been obtained, except for notices required or permitted to be 
filed after the date of this Agreement with certain state and federal securities regulatory bodies, 
which notices will be filed on a timely basis. 
 

3. Representations, Warranties, and Acknowledgements of Purchaser. Purchaser 
represents and warrants to the Company, and acknowledges that the Company is relying 
on these representations and warranties to, among other things, ensure that it is complying 
with all of the applicable securities laws, that:  

3.1 Purchaser has the requisite knowledge and experience to assess the relative merits 
and risks of this investment, or has relied upon the advice of Purchaser’s professional advisors, 
who have such knowledge and experience. Purchaser represents and warrants that they are aware 
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of the degree of risk associated with the purchase of the Note and the Equity Securities upon 
conversion of the Note (collectively, the “Securities”) and have determined that the purchase of 
the Securities is a suitable investment.  

3.2 Purchaser is fully aware and understands that at any time the Company may operate 
at a loss rather than a profit, and may do so for an unforeseeable amount of time.  

3.3 Purchaser hereby acknowledges and certifies that Purchaser received and read the 
offering disclosures and all exhibits thereto of the Company filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission in connection with the Offering (the "Form C"), and Purchaser is familiar with the 
information in the Form C.  

3.4 Purchaser hereby confirms that Purchaser has reviewed or had the opportunity to 
review the financial statements and other financial information related to the investment within the 
Company.  

3.5 If Subscriber is not an accredited investor, Subscriber understands that they may 
invest no more than ten percent (10%) of their annual income or net worth, whichever is greater.  
There are no limitations on what accredited investors may invest.    

3.6 If Subscriber has checked the box next to “Accredited Investor” on 
Subscriber’s signature page or on the regulated crowdfunding portal, Subscriber represents and 
warrants that Subscriber is an accredited investor as defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D 
promulgated under the Securities Act, and Subscriber must verify this status through the Portal.  

3.7 Subscriber has had an opportunity to ask questions of the Company and to receive 
answers concerning the terms of the investment, as well as about the Company and its business 
generally, and to obtain any additional information that Company possesses or can acquire without 
unreasonable effort or expense, that is necessary to verify the accuracy of the information provided 
by the Company in connection with the Offering. Further, all such questions have been answered 
to the full satisfaction of the Subscriber.  

3.8 Subscriber understands that no state or federal authority in the United States or 
authority outside the United States has scrutinized this Agreement or the Securities, has made any 
finding or determination relating to the fairness of an investment in the Securities, or has 
recommended or endorsed the Securities. 

3.9 Subscriber is subscribing for and purchasing the Note without being furnished any 
offering materials, other than the Form C, this Agreement, and the Note, and such other related 
documents, agreements or instruments as may be attached to the foregoing documents as exhibits 
or supplements thereto, or as Subscriber has otherwise requested from the Company in writing, 
and without receiving any representations or warranties from the Company or its agents and 
representatives other than the representations and warranties contained in said documents, and is 
making this investment decision solely in reliance upon the information contained in said 
documents and upon any independent investigation made by Subscriber or Subscriber’s advisors. 

3.10 Subscriber acknowledges that Securities are being and will be acquired solely for 
Subscriber’s own account, for investment purposes, and not for the account of others. Subscriber 
represents that Subscriber is not a party to, and does not presently intend to enter into, any contract 
or arrangement with any other person or entity involving the resale, transfer, grant of participation 
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with respect to or other distribution of the Securities. 

3.11 Subscriber understands that nothing in this Agreement or any other materials 
presented to Subscriber in connection with the purchase and sale of the Securities constitutes legal, 
tax, or investment advice. The Company has suggested that Subscriber consults with such legal, 
tax, and investment advisors as Subscriber, in its sole discretion, deems necessary or appropriate 
in connection with its purchase of the Securities. 

3.12 Both the Company and Subscriber represent that neither it nor any of its officers, 
directors, managers, partners, employees, representatives, or agents, either is, or will be obligated 
for any finder’s or broker’s fee or commission in connection with this transaction. Subscriber 
agrees to indemnify and to hold harmless the Company from any liability for any commission or 
compensation in the nature of a finders’ or broker’s fee (and any asserted liability as a result of the 
performance of services of any such finder or broker) for which Subscriber or any of its officers, 
directors, managers, partners, employees, agents, or representatives may be responsible. 

3.13 Subscriber represents that all information provided by Subscriber to the Company 
in connection with the purchase of the Securities is true, correct, and complete as of the date set 
forth hereof, and if there should be any change in such information, Subscriber shall immediately 
provide the Company with such information. 

3.14 Subscriber has read and fully understands the terms, conditions and effect of the 
investment and all other documents in connection therewith.   

3.15 Subscriber represents and warrants to, and covenants with, the Company that (i) 
Subscriber has full right, power, authority and capacity to enter into this Agreement and to 
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and has taken all necessary action to authorize 
the execution, delivery, and performance of this Agreement, and (ii) this Agreement constitutes a 
valid and binding obligation of Subscriber enforceable against Subscriber in accordance with its 
terms, except as enforceability may be limited by applicable law. 

3.16 Subscriber acknowledges and understands that the Note is being offered pursuant 
to the Securities Laws, that the Securities have not been registered under the Securities Act, and 
that federal and state securities laws and regulations place restrictions on the transfer of the Note. 
Subscriber shall not, directly or indirectly, offer, sell, pledge, transfer, or otherwise dispose of (or 
solicit any offers to buy, purchase, or otherwise acquire or take a pledge of) any part of the 
Securities except in compliance with this Agreement, the Securities, any applicable state and 
federal securities laws, and the respective rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.  

3.17 Subscriber understands that the Company is not currently a reporting issuer in the 
United States, and there is no assurance that it will ever be a reporting issuer in the United States. 
As a result, the restrictions on resale of the Securities may be indefinite for Subscriber. As there is 
no market for the Securities, it may be difficult or even impossible for Subscriber to resell them. 
If Subscriber does resell, it is Subscriber’s responsibility that the sale complies with applicable 
securities laws. 

3.18 Subscriber is able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the Securities and, 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, is able to hold the Securities for an indefinite 
period of time. The Subscriber has adequate means to provide for the Subscriber’s current needs 
and personal contingencies and has a sufficient net worth to sustain the loss of the Subscriber’s 
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entire investment. 

3.19  Subscriber understands that any forecasts or predictions as to the Company’s 
performance are based on estimates, assumptions and forecasts that the Company believes to be 
reasonable but that may prove to be materially incorrect, and no assurance is given that actual 
results will correspond with the results contemplated by the various forecasts. 

3.20  Subscriber hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company and any of 
its officers, directors, shareholders, employees, agents or affiliates (collectively the "Indemnified 
Parties" and individually an "Indemnified Party") who was or is a party or is threatened to be 
made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, 
criminal, administrative or investigative, against losses, liabilities and expenses of each 
Indemnified Party (including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement, 
payable as incurred) incurred by such person or entity in connection with such action, arbitration, 
suit or proceeding, by reason of or arising from (i) any misrepresentation or misstatement of facts 
or omission to represent or state facts made by Subscriber, including, without limitation, the 
information in this Agreement, or (ii) litigation or other proceeding brought by Subscriber against 
one or more Indemnified Party in which the Indemnified Party is the prevailing party.  

3.21  Subscriber understands that once Subscriber has executed the Agreement and 
submitted funds, such subscription may be revoked up until forty-eight (48) hours prior to the close 
of the Offering in accordance with Securities Laws. 

3.22 SUBSCRIBER IS AWARE THAT AN INVESTMENT IN THE COMPANY IS 
SPECULATIVE AND INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK, INCLUDING THE POSSIBLE 
LOSS OF THE ENTIRE INVESTMENT, AND SUBSCRIBER HAS CAREFULLY READ AND 
CONSIDERED THE RISK FACTORS AND ALL MATTERS SPECIFIED IN THE FORM 1-A 
AND EXHIBITS OR APPENDICES THERETO IN DETERMINING WHETHER OR NOT TO 
INVEST IN THE COMPANY AS SPECIFIED HEREIN. SUBSCRIBER UNDERSTANDS 
THAT THE AFOREMENTIONED RISK FACTORS ARE NOT AN ALL-INCLUSIVE LIST OF 
POSSIBLE RISKS INHERENT IN THE OFFERING. 

3.23 Under penalties of perjury, Subscriber certifies that: (1) the taxpayer ID number or 
social security number shown above is the correct taxpayer identification number issued to 
Subscriber; and (2) Subscriber is not subject to backup withholding because: (a) Subscriber is 
exempt from backup withholding, or (b) Subscriber has not been notified by the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS) that Subscriber is subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all 
interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified Subscriber that it is no longer subject to backup 
withholding; and (3) Subscriber is a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person. 

3.24 Without in any way limiting the representations set forth above, Purchaser further 
agrees not to make any disposition of all or any portion of the Securities unless and until: 

(a) There is then in effect a Registration Statement under the Securities Act 
covering such proposed disposition and such disposition is made in accordance with such 
Registration Statement; or 

 
(b) Purchaser shall have notified the Company of the proposed disposition and 

shall have furnished the Company with a detailed statement of the circumstances surrounding the 
proposed disposition, and if reasonably requested by the Company, Purchaser shall have furnished 
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the Company with an opinion of counsel, reasonably satisfactory to the Company, that such 
disposition will not require registration under the Securities Act or any applicable state securities 
laws. 

3.25  The Company’s intent is to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws 
designed to combat money laundering and similar illegal activities, including the provisions of the 
Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and 
Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “PATRIOT Act”). The Subscriber agrees that, if at any time 
it is discovered that the Company has been or may be found to have violated the PATRIOT Act or 
any other anti-money laundering laws or regulations as a result of the purchase of the Securities or 
receipt of the purchase price of the Securities, or if otherwise required by applicable laws or 
regulations, the Company may undertake appropriate actions, and Subscriber agrees to cooperate 
with such actions to ensure compliance with such laws or regulations. Subscriber agrees to provide 
any and all documentation requested by the Company to ensure compliance with the PATRIOT 
Act or other laws or regulations. 

3.26 If Subscriber is not a United States person (as defined by Section 7701(a)(30) of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended), Subscriber hereby represents that Subscriber has 
satisfied itself as to the full observance of the laws of its jurisdiction in connection with any 
invitation to subscribe for the Securities or any use of this Agreement, including (i) the legal 
requirements within its jurisdiction for the purchase of the Securities, (ii) any foreign exchange 
restrictions applicable to such purchase, (iii) any governmental or other consents that may need to 
be obtained, and (iv) the income tax and other tax consequences, if any, that may be relevant to 
the purchase, holding, redemption, sale, or transfer of the Securities. Subscriber’s subscription for 
and purchase of and continued beneficial ownership of the Securities will not violate any 
applicable securities or other laws of Subscriber’s jurisdiction. 

4. Miscellaneous.

4.1 Successors and Assigns. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall inure
to the benefit of and be binding upon the respective successors and assigns of the parties. The 
words “Company,” “Purchaser,” and “Subscriber,” whenever used herein shall be deemed and 
construed to include such respective successors and assigns. Nothing in this Agreement or the 
Note, express or implied, is intended to confer upon any third party any rights, remedies, 
obligations, or liabilities under or by reason of this Agreement or the Note, except as expressly 
provided herein. 

4.2 Governing Law. The Note shall be governed by and construed under the laws of 
the State of Michigan, without giving effect to conflicts of laws principles. 

4.3 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

4.4 Titles and Subtitles. The titles and subtitles used in this Agreement are used for 
convenience only and are not to be considered in construing or interpreting this Agreement. 

4.5 Notice. Any notice or demand which either party may or must give to the other 
under this Agreement or the Note shall be made in writing and delivered to the addresses below, 
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or to such other addresses which each party may later designate in writing to the other party. Notice 
shall be deemed to have been duly given when (a) delivered by hand and receipted for by the party 
to whom said notice or other communication shall have been directed, or (b) mailed by certified 
or registered mail with postage prepaid, on the third business day after the date on which it is so 
mailed. 

 
If to the Company: 

 
Natalie King, President & CEO 
Dunamis Charge, INC 
19785 W. 12 Mile Rd., Ste. 345 
Southfield, MI 48076 

 
If to Purchaser: 

 
Address on 
Signature Page 

 
4.6 Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement or the Note becomes 

or is declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, the 
Agreement and the Note shall continue in full force and effect without said provision; provided 
that no severance shall be effective if it materially changes the economic benefit of the Agreement 
or the Note to any party. 

 
4.7 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Note constitute the final, complete, 

and exclusive statement of the terms of the agreement between the parties pertaining to the 
purchase of the Note by Purchaser from the Company and supersede all prior and contemporaneous 
understandings or agreements of the parties. 

 
4.8 Amendment.  The terms of this Agreement may be amended, modified or waived 

with the written consent of the Company and the holders of more than fifty percent (50%) of the 
aggregate principal balance of all of the Notes; provided however, that no such amendment, waiver 
or modification shall: (i) reduce the principal amount of any Note without the affected holder’s 
written consent, or (ii) reduce the rate of interest of any Note without the affected holder’s written 
consent. Any amendment or waiver effected in accordance with this paragraph shall be binding 
upon all of the parties hereto. 

 
4.9 Tax Withholding. Purchaser hereby authorizes the Company to make any 

withholding required by law. Purchaser agrees to provide to the Company a Form W-9 or 
comparable form. 

 
4.10 Further Assurances. Each party hereby covenants and agrees, without the 

necessity of any further consideration, to execute and deliver any and all such further documents 
and take any and all such other actions as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the intent 
and purposes of this Agreement and the Note and to consummate the transactions contemplated 
herein. 

 
4.11 Assignment. This Agreement may be assigned by the Company to any successor 
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entity of the Company. In the case of such an assignment, the successor entity shall assume all 
obligations under this Agreement and shall notify Purchaser promptly of such assignment.  

 
4.12 Defined Terms. Any capitalized terms used herein, but not defined herein, will 

have the meanings ascribed to them in the Note. 
 

 
[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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the future of gaming  
EXHIBIT A 

 
CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE 

 
THIS NOTE AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON THE CONVERSION HEREOF 
(THE “SECURITIES”) HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES 
ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), OR UNDER THE 
SECURITIES LAWS OF ANY STATES. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED, 
SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED, PLEDGED OR HYPOTHECATED EXCEPT 
AS PERMITTED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE 
SECURITIES LAWS PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT 
OR AN EXEMPTION THEREFROM. THE ISSUER OF THESE SECURITIES MAY 
REQUIRE AN OPINION OF COUNSEL REASONABLY SATISFACTORY TO THE 
ISSUER THAT SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR HYPOTHECATION 
OTHERWISE COMPLIES WITH THE SECURITIES ACT AND ANY APPLICABLE 
STATE SECURITIES LAWS. 
 

CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY 
NOTE 

 
Principal Amount: $5,000,000 

 
Date: ______________ 

 
For value received, DUNAMIS CHARGE, INC., a Michigan corporation (the 
“Company), promises to pay to or its successors or assigns (“Holder”) the principal 
sum of dollars ($5,000,000), or such lesser amount as shall then equal the 
outstanding principal balance hereunder, together with simple interest on the unpaid 
principal balance at the Interest Rate described below. Interest shall commence  24 
months after the Closing of the Offering and shall continue on the outstanding 
principal until paid in full or converted as provided herein. Interest shall be computed 
on the basis of a year of 365 days for the actual number of days elapsed. 

 
 

1. Certain Definitions.   
 

a. “Closing” means the completion or termination of the Offering as such terms are 
defined in 17 CFR 230.152(d)(1).  
 

b. “Conversion Price” means the (i) the IPO Conversion Price; (ii) Standard 
Conversion Price; or (iii) Discounted Conversion Price, as defined herein. 
 

c. “Current Valuation” means the current monetary value of the Company as 
determined through a comparable company analysis.  
 



11 

d. “Maturity Date” means the sooner of (a) the date on which all outstanding 
principal and unpaid interest is due and payable upon an Event of Default or (b) 
the seventh anniversary of the Closing.  
 

e. “M&A Transaction” means (i) any reorganization, merger or consolidation of the 
Company, other than a transaction or series of related transactions in which the 
holders of the voting securities of the Company outstanding immediately prior to 
such transaction or series of related transactions retain, immediately after such 
transaction or series of related transactions, at least a majority of the total voting 
power represented by the outstanding voting securities of the Company or such 
other surviving or resulting entity (in respect of securities of the Company held by 
them prior to such transaction) or (ii) a sale, lease or other disposition of all or 
substantially all of the assets of the Company. 
 

f. “Interest Accrual Start Date” means the date that is 24 months after the Closing.  
 

g. “Interest Rate” means 10% per annum.  
 

h. “Investors” means holders of all the Notes.  
 

i. “Investor” means a holder of a Note. 
 

j. “IPO” means initial public offering.  
 

k. “IPO Securities” means equity securities issued public offering in which shares 
of a company are sold to institutional investors[1] and usually also to retail 
(individual) investors.[2] An IPO is typically underwritten by one or more 
investment banks, who also arrange for the shares to be listed on one or more stock 
exchanges. 
 

l. “Valuation Cap” means $ 50,000,000. 
 

Any capitalized terms used herein, but not defined herein, will have the meanings ascribed to 
them in the Agreement.  

 
2.  This note (“the Note” or “this Note”) is issued pursuant to the terms of that certain  
Convertible Promissory Note Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”), dated as of , by and  
 between the Company and Holder, pursuant to a securities offering under Regulation 
Crowdfunding (17 CFR 230.551) of the Securities Act and the applicable rules thereunder (the 
“Financing”). All notes issued pursuant to convertible note purchase agreements in substantially 
the same form as the Agreement and entered into as part of the Financing shall be referred to herein 
and, in the Agreement, as “Notes,” “the Notes,” or “any Notes” and each, “a Note,” “any Notes” or 
“such Notes.”  This Note incorporates by reference all the terms of the Agreement. 
 
3.  Payments.  
 

a. Simple interest on the principal amount of each Note will begin to accrue on the Interest 
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Accrual Start Date.  
 

b. Interest will continue to accrue until the Maturity Date. The Company will make its first 
interest payment by March 31 of the first calendar year that follows the Interest Accrual 
Start Date. Thereafter, interest payments shall continue to be due quarterly: 0n March 31, 
June 30, September 30, and December 3 of each calendar year. The entire outstanding 
principal balance of the Note, together with all accrued and unpaid interest, shall be due and 
payable in full at the Maturity Date unless earlier converted into equity securities.  

 
 

c. All payments of interest and principal shall be in lawful money of the United States of 
America and shall be made to Holder. All payments shall be applied first to accrued 
interest, and thereafter to the principal. 

 
 

d. The Notes will rank equally without preference or priority of any kind over one another, 
and all payments on account of principal and interest with respect to any of the Notes will 
be applied ratably and proportionately on all outstanding Notes on the basis of the original 
principal amount of outstanding Notes.  

 
3.  Prepayment. The Company has the right to prepay the principal and any accrued interest at 
any time during the term of the Note without penalty.  
 
4.   Optional Conversion.  
 

a. IPO Conversion. If the Company conducts an IPO of equity securities (“IPO Securities”) 
before the Maturity Date, Investors shall have the option to convert either or both of the 
unpaid principal and accrued interest under the Notes into IPO Securities at a conversion 
price equal to the lower of (i) 80 percent (80%) of the price per share agreed to in the IPO 
or (ii) the quotient obtained by dividing (A) the Valuation Cap by (B) the number of 
common shares of the Company that are outstanding immediately prior to the IPO (the 
“IPO Conversion Price”).  
 
The total number of IPO Securities that a holder of a Note shall be entitled to receive upon 
conversion of such Note shall be determined by dividing (x) the principal and interest 
outstanding under the Note by (y) the IPO Conversion Price.  
 

b. M&A Transaction Conversion. In the event of an M&A Transaction before the Maturity 
Date, the Company shall have the option to convert, immediately before the closing of the 
M&A Transaction, either or both of the unpaid principal and accrued interest under all of 
the Notes into any class of the Company’s equity securities. The conversion price shall be 
equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (A) the Current Valuation by (B) the number of 
common shares of the Company that are then outstanding (the “Standard Conversion 
Price”). The total number of equity securities that a holder of a Note shall be entitled to 
receive upon conversion of such Note shall be determined by dividing (x) the principal and 
interest outstanding under the Note by (y) the Standard Conversion Price.  
 
Any amounts that the Company or its successor chooses not to convert into equity securities 
shall be due and payable immediately before the closing of the M&A Transaction.  
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c. Conversion upon Change in Valuation. If there is a change in the valuation of the
Company, the Company shall have the option to convert either or both of the unpaid
principal and accrued interest at a conversion price equal to the Standard Conversion
Price. The total number of equity securities that a holder of a Note shall be entitled to
receive upon conversion of such Note shall be determined by dividing (x) the principal
and interest outstanding under the Note by (y) the Standard Conversion Price.

d. Conversion for any other reason before Maturity Date. The Company shall have the
option, at any time and for any reason before the Maturity Date, to convert either or both
of the unpaid principal and accrued interests under the Notes into any class of the
Company’s equity securities, provided that the conversion price shall be equal to 10% of
the Standard Conversion Price (“Discounted Conversion Price”). The total number of
equity securities that a holder of a Note shall be entitled to receive upon conversion of
such Note shall be determined by dividing (x) the principal and interest outstanding under
the Note by (y) 10% of the Standard Conversion Price.

5. Events of Default. The entire balance under the Notes shall become due and payable upon
the occurrence of any of the following (each, an “Event of Default”):

a. The Company becomes a debtor or alleged debtor in a case under the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code or becomes the subject of any other bankruptcy or similar proceeding for the general
adjustment of its debts or for its liquidation; or

b. The Company breaches any of its material obligations under the Notes or any other
financing documents and does not cure such breach within ninety (90) days after written
notice thereof to the Company.

6. Subordination. The Note will be subordinated in rights of payment to all indebtedness of the
Company to banks, commercial finance lenders, insurance companies, leasing and
equipment financing institutions and/or other institutions regularly engaged in the business
of lending money.

7. Security. This Note is unsecured.

8. Restrictions on Transfer. The Note may not be offered, sold, or otherwise transferred,
pledged or hypothecated except as permitted by Rule 501 of Regulation Crowdfunding
(Rule 501) and applicable State laws.

Rule 501 provides that the Note may not be transferred for one year after the date of
issuance (with limited exceptions).

Further, the Investor may not transfer the note without the Company’s written consent,
even if such transfer is permitted by State and federal law.

9. Right of First Refusal. The Company shall have a right of first refusal (“ROFR”) to
purchase any Note that any Investor proposes to sell, transfer, gift, pledge, assign,
distribute, encumber or otherwise dispose of to a third party, except for transfers which
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are part of an inheritance. The Company’s ROFR may be assignable by the Company to 
any other Investor.  

10. Miscellaneous.

a. The Company hereby waives demand, notice, presentment, protest and notice of
dishonor.

b. This Note shall be governed by and construed under the laws of Michigan, without
giving effect to conflicts of laws principles.

c. The terms of the Notes may be amended, modified or waived with the written
consent of the Company and the holders of more than fifty percent (50%) of the
aggregate principal balance of all of the Notes; provided, however, that no such
amendment, waiver or modification shall: (i) reduce the principal amount of any
Note without the affected holder’s written consent, or (ii) reduce the rate of interest
of any Note without the affected holder’s written consent. Any amendment or
waiver effected in accordance with this paragraph shall be binding upon all of the
parties hereto.

d. The Company may assign its obligations under the Note to any successor entity of
the Company. The Company shall notify Holder promptly of such assignment.

e. This Note is not effective until the Company has accepted from Holder an amount
equal to the principal amount of this Note.

[Signature page follows.] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY 
NOTE to be duly executed as of  ,  . 

By: 

Name: Natalie King   
Title: President & CEO 

By: ___________ 

Purchaser: 



CONVERTIBLE NOTE OFFERING 
UNDER REGULATION CROWDFUNDING 

(THE “OFFERING”) 

SUMMARY OF TERMS 

The intent of this term sheet (“Term Sheet”) is to describe certain key terms of an investment in 
Dunamis Charge, Inc., a Michigan corporation (the “Company”), pursuant to a potential offering 
under Regulation Crowdfunding under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Offering”) 

Right now the Company is only gauging interest in a potential Regulation Crowdfunding 
offering. No money or other consideration is being solicited, and, if sent in response, will not be 
accepted. No offer to invest can be accepted and no part of an investment can be received until 
the Form C is filed and then only through a Regulation Crowdfunding platform. A person’s 
indication of interest involves no obligation or commitment of any kind. 

This Term Sheet is a summary only and does not constitute a legally binding agreement or a 
commitment to invest. There is no obligation on the part of any party until the definitive 
documents are signed by all parties. This summary of terms does not constitute either an offer to 
sell or an offer to purchase securities. 

Type of Security: Convertible promissory notes (the “Notes,” each, a “Note”) 

Total Offering Amount: $5,000,000 

Purchase Price: Face value 

Minimum Investment 
Amount:  $500 

Minimum Offering $10,000 
Amount:  

Interest Rate:  10% per annum. 

Payment Schedule: Simple interest on the principal amount of each Note will begin to 
accrue on the Interest Accrual Start Date.  

“Interest Accrual Start Date” means the date that is 24 months after 
the Closing.  

“Closing” means the “completion” or “termination” of the Offering 
as such terms are defined in 17 CFR 230.152(d)(1).  

Interest will continue to accrue until the Maturity Date. The 
Company will make its first interest payment by March 31 of the 
first calendar year that follows the Interest Accrual Start Date. 
Thereafter, interest payments shall continue to be due quarterly: on 
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March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 3 of each calendar 
year. The entire outstanding principal balance of the Note, together 
with all accrued and unpaid interest, shall be due and payable in full 
at the Maturity Date unless earlier converted into equity securities. 

 
Maturity Date: The sooner of (i) the date on which all outstanding principal and 

unpaid interest is due and payable upon an Event of Default or (ii) 
the seventh anniversary of the Closing. 

  
Prepayment: The Company has the right to prepay the principal and any accrued 

interest at any time during the term of the Note without penalty. 
 
Optional Conversion: If the Company conducts an initial public offering (“IPO”) of equity 

securities (the “IPO Securities”) before the Maturity Date, investors 
shall have the option to convert either or both of the unpaid principal 
and accrued interest under the Notes into IPO Securities at a 
conversion price equal to the lower of (i) 80% of the price per share 
agreed to in the IPO or (ii) the quotient obtained by dividing (A) the 
Valuation Cap by (B) the number of common shares of the 
Company that are outstanding immediately prior to the IPO (the 
“IPO Conversion Price”). The total number of IPO Securities that 
a holder of a Note shall be entitled to receive upon conversion of 
such Note shall be determined by dividing (x) the principal and 
interest outstanding under the Note by (y) the IPO Conversion Price. 

 
 The “Valuation Cap” shall be $50,000,000.  

 
In the event of an M&A Transaction before the Maturity Date, the 
 Company shall have the option to convert, immediately 
before the closing of the M&A Transaction, either or both of the 
unpaid principal and accrued interest under all of the Notes into any 
class of the Company’s equity securities. The conversion price shall 
be equal to the quotient obtained by dividing (A) the Current 
Valuation by (B) the number of common shares of the Company that 
are then outstanding (the “Standard Conversion Price”). The total 
number of equity securities that a holder of a Note or Notes shall be 
entitled to receive upon conversion of such Note or Notes shall be 
determined by dividing (x) the principal and interest outstanding 
under the Note or Notes by (y) the Standard Conversion Price.  
 
Any amounts that the Company or its successor chooses not to 
convert into equity securities shall be due and payable immediately 
before the closing of the M&A Transaction.   
 
“Current Valuation” means the current monetary value of the 
Company as determined through a comparable company analysis.  

  
 “M&A Transaction” means (i) any reorganization, merger or  
 consolidation of the Company, other than a transaction or series of  
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 related transactions in which the holders of the voting securities of  
 the Company outstanding immediately prior to such transaction or  
 series of related transactions retain, immediately after such   
 transaction or series of related transactions, at least a majority of  
 the total voting power represented by the outstanding voting  
 securities of the Company or such other surviving or resulting  
 entity (in respect of securities of the Company held by them prior  
 to such transaction) or (ii) a sale, lease or other disposition of all or 
 substantially all of the assets of the Company. 
 
 If there is a change in the valuation of the Company, the Company  
 shall have the option to convert either or both of the unpaid  
 principal and accrued interest at a conversion price equal to the  
 Standard Conversion Price. The total number of equity securities  
 that a holder of a Note shall be entitled to receive upon conversion  
 of such Note shall be determined by dividing (x) the principal and  
 interest outstanding under the Note by (y) the Standard Conversion 
 Price.  
  
 The Company shall have the option, at any time and for any  
 reason before the Maturity Date, to convert either or both of the  
 unpaid principal and accrued interest under the Notes into any  
 class of the Company’s equity securities, provided that the   
 conversion price shall be equal to 10% of the Standard  
 Conversion Price (“Discounted Conversion Price”). The total  
 number of equity securities that a holder of a Note shall be entitled  
 to receive upon conversion of such Note shall be determined by  
 dividing (x) the principal and  interest outstanding under the Note  
 by (y) 10% of the Standard Conversion Price.  
 

Security: The Note will be unsecured. 
 
Subordination: The Note will be subordinated in right of payment to all 

indebtedness of the Company to banks, commercial finance lenders, 
insurance companies, leasing and equipment financing institutions, 
and/or other institutions regularly engaged in the business of lending 
money. 

 
Events of Default: The entire balance under the Notes shall become due and payable 

upon the occurrence of any of the following (each, an “Event of 
Default”): (a) the Company becomes a debtor or alleged debtor in a 
case under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or becomes the subject of any 
other bankruptcy or similar proceeding for the general adjustment 
of its debts or for its liquidation; or (b) the Company breaches any 
of its material obligations under the Notes or any other financing 
document and does not cure such breach within ninety (90) days 
after written notice thereof to the Company.  
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Restrictions on Transfer:  The Note may not be offered, sold, or otherwise transferred, pledged 
or hypothecated except as permitted by Rule 501 of Regulation 
Crowdfunding (“Rule 501”) and applicable State laws.  

  
 Rule 501 provides that the Note may not be transferred for one year 

after the date of issuance (with limited exceptions). 
 
 Further, the investor may not transfer the Note without the 

Company’s written consent, even if such transfer is permitted by 
State and federal law. 

 
Right of First Refusal: The Company shall have a right of first refusal (“ROFR”) to 

purchase any Note that any investor proposes to sell, transfer, gift, 
pledge, assign, distribute, encumber or otherwise dispose of to a 
third party, except for transfers which are part of an inheritance.  The 
Company’s ROFR may be assignable by the Company to any other 
investor in the Offering. 

 
Amendment: The terms of the Notes may be amended, modified or waived with 

the written consent of the Company and the holders of more than 
fifty percent (50%) of the aggregate principal balance of all of the 
Notes; provided however, that no such amendment, waiver or 
modification shall: (i) reduce the principal amount of 
any Note without the affected holder’s written consent, or (ii) 
reduce the rate of interest of any Note without the affected holder’s 
written consent. Any amendment or waiver effected in accordance 
with this paragraph shall be binding upon all of the parties hereto. 
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July 10, 2023 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Board of Directors and Members of  

Dunamis Charge, Inc. 

19785 W. 12 Mile Rd. 

345, Southfield, MI 48076 

 

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

I have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Dunamis Charge, Inc. as of December 31, 2021 and 

2022 and the related statements of operations, changes in owner’s equity and cash flows for the years 

then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. 

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 

implementation, and maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audits. I conducted 

my audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards as accepted in the United States of 

America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the Company’s 

preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the Company’s internal controls. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. 

An audit also includes evaluating appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 

the financial statements. Examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements is also executed. 
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An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

audit opinion. 

OPINION 

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of Dunamis Charge, Inc. as of December 31, 2021 and 2022 and the results of 

operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America. 

EMPHASIS OF MATTER 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the company will continue as 

going concern. As discussed in note 2, the Company has incurred cumulative net losses of $ (1,069,250) 

and negative cash flow from operations since incorporation. This raises substantial doubt about the 

company’s ability to continue operations. Management’s plan is also explained in note 2. Our opinion is 

not modified with respect to this matter. 

 

 

 

Certified Public Accountant, NH 08224 

CF Audits LLC 

159 Main St. STE 100 

Nashua NH 03060 

603-607-7600 

cpa@cfaudits.com 
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Dunamis Charge, Inc 

Balance Sheet Statement 

As of December 31, 2021 & 2022 

 2021 2022 

ASSETS   

Current Assets   

Bank Balance - 25,899 

Total Current Assets - 25,899 

Non-Current Asset   

Machinery & Equipment - 41,000 

Leasehold Improvements - 481,142 

Total Non-Current Assets - 522,142 

TOTAL ASSETS - 548,041 

 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
  

Liabilities   

Promissory Notes - 1,592,142 

Total Liabilities - 1,592,142 

Equity   

Common Stock – 60,000 issued and outstanding (no par 
value) 

- - 

Additional Paid in Capital - 25,149 

Retained Earnings - (1,069,250) 

Total Equity - (1,044,101) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY - 548,041 
 

 

 

  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Dunamis Charge, Inc 

Income Statement 

As of December 31, 2021 & 2022 

 

 2021 2022 

Revenues   

TOTAL REVENUES - - 

Operating Expenses   

Engineering Expenses - 336,029 

Professional Fees - 324,163 

Legal Fees - 90,153 

IT & Software Expenses - 85,894 

Travel Expenses - 77,544 

Rent & Lease Expenses - 71,575 

Advertising & Marketing Expenses - 60,349 

General and Administrative Expenses - 23,543 

Total Operating Expenses - 1,069,250 

NET INCOME (LOSS) - (1,069,250) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Dunamis Charge, Inc 

Statement of Changes in Equity 

As of December 31, 2021 & 2022 

 

 Common 
Stock 

Additional 
Paid in 
Capital 

Retained 
Earnings 
(Deficit) 

Total 

Balance - January 1, 2021 - - - - 

Capital Contributions During 2021 - - - - 

Net Income (Loss) - December 31, 2021 - - - - 

Balance - December 31, 2021 - - - - 

Capital Contributions During 2022 - 25,149 - 25,149 

Net Income (Loss) - December 31, 2022  - (1,069,250) (1,044,101) 

Balance - December 31, 2022 - 25,149 (1,069,250) (1,044,101) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 



Dunamis Charge, Inc 

Statement of Cash Flows 

As of December 31, 2021 & 2022 

 

 2021 2022 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities   

Net Income (Loss) - (1,069,250) 

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in 
operating activities: 

  

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities - (1,069,250) 

   

Cash Flows from Investing Activities   

Purchases of new assets - (522,142) 

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities - (522,142) 

   

Cash Provided by Financing Activities   

Promissory Note - 1,592,142 

Net Contributions - 25,149 

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities - 1,617,291 

   

Net Change in Cash - 25,899 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year - - 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year - 25,899 

 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements 
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Dunamis Charge, Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

As of December 31, 2021 & 2022 

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

Dunamis Charge, Inc. was incorporated in Michigan on March 26
th
, 2020 with a mission to make 

high-quality, affordable EV charging solutions accessible everywhere. 

Dunamis Charge takes great pride in empowering individuals and enhancing their mobility, with a 

strong emphasis on energy cost savings for our customers across various sectors. We are 

committed to making best-in-class, cost-effective EV charging solutions available while benefiting 

our planet. 

Dunamis Charge aims to transform lives with world-class, dependable EV charging technology. 

We are dedicated to revolutionizing how people access energy. Our goal is to create a world 

where going electric is easy and accessible for everyone, whenever and wherever it’s needed. 

NOTE 2 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND GOING CONCERN 

Basis of Presentation 

The Company has earned no revenues from its primary operations since incorporation. 

Accordingly, the Company’s activities have been accounted for as those of a “Development Stage 

Enterprise” as set forth in Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 7 (“SFAS 7”). One 

of the disclosures required by SFAS 7 is that the Company’s financial statements be identified as 

those of a development stage company, and that the statements of operations, members equity, 

and cash flows disclose activity since the date of the Company’s inception. 

Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

Going Concern 

The company is a start-up and funding its operational expenses from financing activities. The 

Company has incurred cumulative net losses of $(1,069,250) and negative cash flow from 

operations since incorporation.  

Management’s plans include raising additional equity financing. There can be no assurance that 

the Company will be successful in obtaining sufficient equity financing on acceptable terms, if at 

all. However, the Dunamis Clean Energy LLC (a related party company) management have the 

intent to fund its operations until the company successfully start producing its products. 

Failure to generate sufficient revenues, achieve planned gross margins, control operating costs, or 

raise sufficient additional financing may require the Company to modify, delay or abandon some of 

its planned future expenditures, which could have material adverse effect on the company’s 

business, operating results, financial condition, and ability to achieve its intended business 

objectives. These circumstances raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue 

as going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

Dunamis Charge, Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 

As of December 31, 2021 & 2022 

NOTE 3 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
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Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 

principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 

the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 

period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Management evaluates the estimates and assumptions based on historical experience and 

believes that those estimates and assumptions are reasonable based upon information available 

to them. 

Cash 

The Company deposits its cash with financial institutions that Management believes are of high 

credit quality. The Company’s cash consists primarily of cash deposited in U.S. dollar denominated 

demand-deposit accounts. 

Accounts Receivables and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

Accounts receivables are stated at Net Realizable Value (NRV). On a periodic basis, management 

evaluates its accounts receivable and determines whether to provide an allowance or if any 

accounts should be written off based on a past history of write offs, collections, and current credit 

conditions. A receivable is considered past due if the company has not received payments based 

on agreed-upon terms. The company generally does not require any security or collateral to 

support its receivables. 

NOTE 4 – PROMISSORY NOTE 

The company signed a promissory note amounted $2,444,482 with a related party company to 

finance its operating and investing activities with a 4% annual interest rate. The company has 

utilized the amount of 1,592,142 as of December 31, 2022. 

NOTE 5 – EQUITY 

The company is authorized to issue 2,000,000 shares of common stock with no par value, as of 

December 31, 2022 the company has 60,000 shares issued and outstanding. 

NOTE 6 – CONTINGENCY 

In the normal course of operations, there could be outstanding contingent liabilities resulting from 

lawsuits, governmental agency assessments, etc., which are not known to the Company and 

therefore have not been reflected in the accompanying financial statements. The Company's 

management is of the opinion that such liabilities, if any, will be either immaterial or the Company's 

insurance coverage is adequate to cover any potential losses.  
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Dunamis Charge, Inc 

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued) 

As of December 31, 2021 & 2022 

NOTE 7 – NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

The company is acquiring the necessary machinery and equipment that are necessary to run its 

operations, and has capitalized the leasehold improvement expenses. The company management 

will estimate the useful life of those equipment and account for depreciation once they start the 

company operations. 



APPENDIX D 
Director & Officer Work History 

  



CV: David Ellis Managing Director AESG 

Mr. Ellis brings more than 40 years of experience in the energy sector in his various positions at 

AESG and DTE, a Fortune 500 utility company. He has expertise in utility generation, electrical 

transmission and distribution systems, engineering management, training development and 

regulatory compliance. Mr. Ellis has also managed various Smart Grid applications, with his 

primary areas of focus being research and development, cross-industry collaboration, and 

market analysis of these applications. where he is responsible for operations, engineering and 

project management.  

Mr. Ellis has provided integrated energy solutions such as microgrid, utility scale solar and 

transmission and distribution systems throughout the United States and internationally for 

Ghana, Democratic Republic of Congo, and Bermuda. He is currently engaged in the design, 

production and deployment of electric vehicle charging stations.  

Mr. Ellis utilizes Lean Six Sigma principles and tools to drive operational excellence across the 

enterprise Developing a continuous improvement environment with a focus on strong process 

design, problem identification and solutions, knowledge sharing, and leaders teaching. 

 Mr. Ellis is organizational Safety Lead, which creates and fosters a culture of Leaders and 

employees that embody personal responsibility for emotional and physical safety   

Mr. Ellis is a trained Certified Energy Manager, and served on the Board of Directors of The Heat 

and Warmth Fund, an independent non-profit (501)(c)(3) agency that provides low-income 

individuals and families in Michigan with emergency energy assistance, due to his interest in 

making provisions for an economic and sustainable safety net for at-risk energy consumers 

 He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering Technology from Lawrence Technological 

University in Southfield, MI, where he also developed and taught an Alternative Energy 

Technology curriculum based on energy economics as an Adjunct Professor. 

 

Affiliations  

x  Board of Directors for The Heat and Warmth Fund, THAW (9yrs) 

x American Association of Blacks in Energy Legislative Policy – Think Tank for CBC on energy policy 

US and Africa (15yrs) 

x Edison Electric Institute (14yrs) 

x Electric Power Research Institute - Demand Response(8yrs) 

x  U.S. Department of Energy - Smart Grid and Rural Electrification (7yrs) 

x  National Association of Regulated Utility Commissioners, NARUC (12yrs) 

•   Michigan Public Service Commission MPSC liaison (15yrs) 



Kimathi L. Boothe, CEM, PMP 
 
Kimathi Boothe, CEM, PMP is a Certified Energy Manager and Project 
Management Professional with twenty years of engineering experience 
having progressive technical and management responsibilities, 
including thirteen years specializing in energy-efficient building science. 
He has developed expertise through leading diverse teams in the 
evaluation, management and/or delivery of over 350 commercial and 
industrial energy-efficiency projects. 
 

As Sr. Project Engineer for Dunamis Clean Energy Partners, Mr. Boothe performs energy 
analytics, cost savings analysis and design engineering services for the commercial and 
industrial sector. By conducting ASHRAE Level energy audits and developing energy models that 
simulate building performance, he recommends specific and prioritized Energy Conservation 
Measures (ECMs). He also performs LED lighting design and photometric analysis along with 
product evaluation and design engineering. His portfolio includes low-rise and high-rise multi-
family housing, office and warehouse buildings, schools, retail and big box stores, houses of 
worship, manufacturing and medical facilities, and has been involved in such notable projects 
as the Book Tower Apartments, One Woodward and Little Cesar’s Arena. Prior to joining the 
Dunamis team in 2017, he spent five years as Lead Energy Advisor for the DTE Energy Efficiency 
Program for Business where he managed a department of eight Energy Advisors that evaluate 
energy saving opportunities for large, complex new construction and major renovation projects, 
and assist customers with the associated incentive application process. 
 
Mr. Boothe attended Morehouse College in Atlanta, GA and Oakland University in Rochester, 
MI where he majored in mathematics and electrical engineering, respectively, earning his BSEE.  
He became the founding president of the Oakland University chapter of the National Society of 
Black Engineers (NSBE). 
 
Mr. Boothe has also received numerous awards and accolades from various professional and 
civic organizations throughout his career, most recently and notably the “Program Excellence 
Award” from DTE/DNVGL and the “Outstanding Success and Service Award” from the NAACP. 
Kimathi is actively involved in church, the Northern Oakland County Branch NAACP, Engineering 
Society of Detroit, the Climate Justice Alliance and the Pontiac Area Regional Chamber of 
Commerce. 



APPENDIX E 
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LQGLYLGXDOO\�DQG�DV�WKH�VROH�VKDUHKROGHU�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��³6KDUHKROGHU´��SXUVXDQW�WR�6HFWLRQ
���������RI�WKH�0LFKLJDQ�%XVLQHVV�&RUSRUDWLRQV�$FW��³WKH�$FW´�

5(&,7$/6

:+(5($6��RQ�-DQXDU\�����������D�&HUWLILFDWH�RI�$PHQGPHQW ZDV�ILOHG�ZLWK�WKH�6WDWH�RI
0LFKLJDQ�SXUVXDQW�WR�6HFWLRQ����������RI�WKH�$FW�LQFUHDVLQJ�WKH�WRWDO�QXPEHU�RI�DXWKRUL]HG
FRPPRQ�VWRFN�IURP��������WR�����������DQG�LVVXLQJ�DOO�RI�WKH�DXWKRUL]HG�FRPPRQ�VWRFN�WR
6KDUHKROGHU��³6KDUHV´��

:+(5($6� 6KDUHKROGHU�LV�WKH�UHVSHFWLYH�RZQHU�RI�WKH VKDUHV�VHW�IRUWK�RSSRVLWH�WKHLU�QDPHV�LQ
(;+,%,7�$��³/LVW�RI�6KDUHKROGHUV�RU�&$3�7DEOH´���7KH�6KDUHV�FRQVWLWXWH�DOO�RI�WKH�LVVXHG�DQG
RXWVWDQGLQJ�VWRFN�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�

:+(5($6��WKH�6KDUHKROGHU�GHVLUHV�WR�HQWHU�LQWR�DQ DJUHHPHQW��ZKLFK�ZLOO�EH�ELQGLQJ�RQ�WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�DOO�RI�LWV�VKDUHKROGHUV�H[LVWLQJ�QRZ�DQG�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH��UHJXODWLQJ�YDULRXV�DVSHFWV
RI�WKH�LQWHUQDO�DIIDLUV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��WKH�UHODWLRQV�RI�WKH�VKDUHKROGHUV�DQG�WKH�UHODWLRQV�RI�WKH
VKDUHKROGHUV�WR�WKH�ERDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV�

:+(5($6� WKH�6KDUHKROGHU�LV�SHUPLWWHG�SXUVXDQW�WR 6HFWLRQ����������RI�WKH�$FW�DQG�6HFWLRQ
�����RI�WKH��QG�$PHQGHG�%\ODZV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�WR�HQWHU�LQWR�DQ�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ�HVWDEOLVKLQJ�ZKR�VKDOO�EH�GLUHFWRUV�RU�RIILFHUV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH
WHUPV�RI�RIILFH�RU�PDQQHU�RI�VHOHFWLRQ�RU�UHPRYDO�RI�GLUHFWRUV�RU�RIILFHUV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�
UHVWULFWLQJ�WKH�GLVFUHWLRQ�RU�SRZHU�RI�WKH�ERDUG��JRYHUQLQJ�WKH�H[HUFLVH�RU�GLYLVLRQ�RI�YRWLQJ
SRZHU�E\�RU�EHWZHHQ�WKH�VKDUHKROGHUV�DQG�GLUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��VHWWLQJ�IRUWK�WKH�WHUPV
DQG�FRQGLWLRQV��RI�DQ\�DJUHHPHQW�IRU�WKH�SURYLVLRQ�RI�VHUYLFHV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�DQ\
VKDUHKROGHU��GLUHFWRU��RIILFHU��RU�HPSOR\HH�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��WUDQVIHUULQJ�WR���RU�PRUH
VKDUHKROGHUV�RU�RWKHU�SHUVRQV�DOO�RU�SDUW�RI�WKH�DXWKRULW\�WR�H[HUFLVH�WKH�FRUSRUDWH�SRZHUV�DQG�WR
PDQDJH�WKH�EXVLQHVV�DQG�DIIDLUV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��DQG�JRYHUQLQJ�WKH�JHQHUDO�H[HUFLVH�RI�WKH
FRUSRUDWH�SRZHUV�DQG�WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�RI�WKH�EXVLQHVV�DQG�DIIDLUV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�WKH
UHODWLRQVKLS�DPRQJ�WKH�VKDUHKROGHUV��DV�ZHOO�DV�WKH�GLUHFWRUV��VR�ORQJ�DV�VXFK�DJUHHPHQW�LV�QRW
FRQWUDU\�WR�SXEOLF�SROLF\��³6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW´��

:+(5($6��WKH�SDUWLHV�KDYH�DJUHHG�WKDW�LW�LV�LQ�WKH EHVW�LQWHUHVW�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�WR�HQWHU�LQWR
D�6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW�WKDW�JRYHUQV�ERWK�WKH�VSHFLILF�DQG�WKH�JHQHUDO�DXWKRULW\�WR�H[HUFLVH
FRUSRUDWH�SRZHUV�DQG�PDQDJH�WKH�EXVLQHVV�DQG�DIIDLUV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�LQ�RUGHU�WR
EHWWHU�HQVXUH�WKH�SURILWDELOLW\�DQG�JURZWK�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�
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:+(5($6� 6KDUHKROGHU�LV�D�'LUHFWRU�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ DQG�FXUUHQWO\�KROGV�WKH�RIILFHV�RI
3UHVLGHQW��7UHDVXUHU��DQG�6HFUHWDU\�

:+(5($6��WKH�SDUWLHV�WR�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW�GHVLUH�WKDW 6KDUHKROGHU�PDLQWDLQV�KHU�SRVLWLRQ�DV
'LUHFWRU�DQG�3UHVLGHQW�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�H[LVWHQFH�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�PD\
RQO\�EH�UHPRYHG�SHU�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW�

:+(5($6� WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�ZLVKHV�WR�DOORW�6KDUHKROGHU RQH�YRWH�SHU�VKDUH�KHOG�DW�DQ\
VKDUHKROGHUV�PHHWLQJ��DV�ZHOO�DV�RQH�YRWH�DW�DQ\�PHHWLQJ�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�

:+(5($6� WKH�SDUWLHV�WR�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW�DJUHH�WKDW 6KDUHKROGHU��DORQJ�ZLWK�KHU�UHOHYDQW
H[SHULHQFH�DQG�ZRUNLQJ�KLVWRU\��LV�WKH�EHVW�FDQGLGDWH�WR�VHUYH�DV�WKH�&KLHI�([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU�RI
WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�VKDOO�EH�HPSOR\HG�DV�VXFK�XQGHU�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RXWOLQHG�LQ�DQ
HPSOR\PHQW�DJUHHPHQW�IXOO\�H[HFXWHG�E\�ERWK�SDUWLHV�

:+(5($6� WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�LV�D�FHUWLILHG�PLQRULW\�EXVLQHVV HQWHUSULVH�DQG�DVSLUHV�WR�UHPDLQ�DV
VXFK�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�OLIH�RI�LWV�H[LVWHQFH�

:+(5($6��WKH�6KDUHKROGHU�GHVLUHV�WKDW�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ UHPDLQV�D�FHUWLILHG�PLQRULW\�EXVLQHVV
HQWHUSULVH�WKURXJK�PDMRULW\�PLQRULW\�VKDUHKROGHUVKLS��DQG�FRQWURO�DQG�YRWH�WKHVH�VKDUHV�RI�WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ�DW�RQH�YRWH�SHU�VKDUH�

12:��7+(5()25(��LQ�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�PXWXDO�FRYHQDQWV FRQWDLQHG�KHUHLQ�DQG�RWKHU
JRRG�DQG�YDOXDEOH�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ��WKH�UHFHLSW�DQG�VXIILFLHQF\�RI�ZKLFK�LV�KHUHE\
DFNQRZOHGJHG�E\�HDFK�RI�WKH�SDUWLHV�KHUHWR��LW�LV�KHUHE\�DJUHHG�DV�IROORZV�

6HFWLRQ����(VWDEOLVKLQJ�'LUHFWRUV�DQG�2IILFHUV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ� 'LUHFWRUV�RI�WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�HOHFWHG�DW�HDFK�DQQXDO�VKDUHKROGHUV�PHHWLQJ�E\�VKDUHKROGHUV�HQWLWOHG�WR
YRWH��2IILFHUV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�DSSRLQWHG�RU�HOHFWHG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�
1RWZLWKVWDQGLQJ�WKH�DERYH��WKH�6KDUHKROGHU�VKDOO�PDLQWDLQ�KHU�SRVLWLRQ�DV�'LUHFWRU�DQG�3UHVLGHQW
RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�H[LVWHQFH�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG
PD\�RQO\�EH�UHPRYHG�SHU�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW��XQOHVV�RWKHUZLVH�SURKLELWHG�E\�ODZ��,Q�WKH
HYHQW�RI�WKH�GHDWK�RI�6KDUHKROGHU��WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�GLUHFWRUV�VKDOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�VHUYH�DV�WKH�GLUHFWRUV
XQWLO�WKH�QH[W�DQQXDO�PHHWLQJ�RI�WKH�VKDUHKROGHUV��XQOHVV�D�YDFDQF\�LV�ILOOHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK
6HFWLRQ������RI�WKH�%\�/DZV�

6HFWLRQ����9RWLQJ�3RZHU�$PRQJ�6KDUHKROGHUV� 7KH�6KDUHKROGHU VKDOO�KDYH�RQH�YRWH�SHU�VKDUH
KHOG�IRU�DQ\�PDWWHU�SXW�WR�D�YRWH�RI�WKH�VKDUHKROGHUV��LQFOXGLQJ�EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��WKH�LVVXDQFH�
UHSXUFKDVH��UHVWUXFWXULQJ��RU�UHFDSLWDOL]DWLRQ�RI�WKH�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��WKH�DPHQGPHQW�RU
UHVWDWHPHQW�RI�WKH�DUWLFOHV�RI�LQFRUSRUDWLRQ�RU�WKH�%\�/DZV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��WKH�DSSRLQWPHQW�
UHPRYDO��RU�UHSODFHPHQW�RI�DQ\�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��DQG�WKH
H[HFXWLRQ�RU�DPHQGPHQW�RI�DQ\�HPSOR\PHQW��PDQDJHPHQW��FRQVXOWLQJ�RU�VLPLODU�FRQWUDFW�IRU�DQ\
RI�WKH�GLUHFWRUV�DQG�RWKHU�NH\�PDQDJHPHQW�SHUVRQQHO��6KDUHKROGHU�VKDOO�KROG�WKH�PDMRULW\�RI
VKDUHV�RI�DQ\�FODVV�RI�VKDUHV�KHOG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��H[FHSW�ZKHUH�SURKLELWHG�E\�ODZ�
6KDUHKROGHU�VKDOO�WDNH�DOO�DFWLRQ�QHFHVVDU\�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�DUWLFOHV�RI�LQFRUSRUDWLRQ�DQG



%\�/DZV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DUH�DGRSWHG��DPHQGHG�DQG�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�DJUHHPHQW��WHUPV�DQG
FRQGLWLRQV�DQG�LQWHQWLRQV�RI�WKLV�6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW��DV�LW�PD\�IURP�WLPH�WR�WLPH�EH
DPHQGHG�

6HFWLRQ����9RWLQJ�3RZHU�%\�DQG�%HWZHHQ�6KDUHKROGHUV�DQG�'LUHFWRUV� 7KH�6KDUHKROGHU�VKDOO
KDYH�WKH�SRZHU�WR�YHWR�DQ\�GHFLVLRQ�E\�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�WKURXJK�ZULWWHQ�QRWLFH�RI
GLVDSSURYDO�RU�WKURXJK�D�YRWH�LQ�WKH�QHJDWLYH�DV�UHFRUGHG�LQ�WKH�PLQXWHV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��7KH
6KDUHKROGHU�PD\�YHWR�D�GHFLVLRQ�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�ZLWKRXW�VXEPLVVLRQ�WR�D�YRWH�E\�WKH
VKDUHKROGHUV�DW�D�VKDUHKROGHUV�PHHWLQJ�RU�SULRU�QRWLFH�WKHUHRI�

6HFWLRQ����&RUSRUDWLRQ�$JUHHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�3URYLVLRQ�RI�6HUYLFHV� 7KH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�VKDOO�HQWHU
LQWR�DQ�HPSOR\PHQW�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�6KDUHKROGHU�IRU�WKH�SURYLVLRQ�RI�VHUYLFHV�RI�D�&KLHI
([HFXWLYH�2IILFHU��&(2���7KLV�HPSOR\PHQW�DJUHHPHQW�IRU�6KDUHKROGHUV¶�SRVLWLRQ�DV�&(2�VKDOO
QRW�EH�WHUPLQDWHG�E\�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�H[FHSW�IRU�DSSURSULDWH�FDXVH�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\�ODZ�
6KDUHKROGHU�PD\�WHUPLQDWH�RU�UHVLJQ�IURP�KHU�HPSOR\PHQW�RU�SRVLWLRQ�RI�&(2�DW�DQ\�WLPH�

6HFWLRQ����&RUSRUDWH�3RZHUV�DQG�%XVLQHVV�$IIDLUV� $OO�DXWKRULW\�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�VKDOO�EH
H[HUFLVHG�DW�DQ\�WLPH�E\�RU�XQGHU�WKH�GLUHFWLRQ�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV��H[FHSW�DV�RWKHUZLVH
SURYLGHG�LQ�WKH�%\ODZV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�6HFWLRQ���RI�WKLV�6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW��)RU�WKH
SXUSRVH�RI�DQ\�UXOH�RI�ODZ�UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�RU�DQ\�SURYLVLRQ�RI�DSSOLFDEOH�ODZ�RU�RI�WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ
V�DUWLFOHV�RI�LQFRUSRUDWLRQ�RU�E\ODZV��WKH�WHUP��GLUHFWRU����PHDQV�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ�WKH�6KDUHKROGHU�

6HFWLRQ����5HODWLRQVKLS�$PRQJ�6KDUHKROGHUV�DQG�'LUHFWRUV� 7KH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�LV�D�0LQRULW\
%XVLQHVV�(QWHUSULVH�FHUWLILHG�E\�WKH�1DWLRQDO�0LQRULW\�6XSSOLHU�'HYHORSPHQW�&RXQFLO��7KH
&RUSRUDWLRQ�VKDOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�EH�D�FHUWLILHG�0LQRULW\�%XVLQHVV�(QWHUSULVH�0%(��LQ�SHUSHWXLW\
WKURXJK�WKH�PDMRULW\�RZQHUVKLS�RI�VKDUHV�KHOG�E\�PLQRULW\�6KDUHKROGHUV��DV�WKDW�LV�GHILQHG�DQG
FHUWLILHG�E\�WKH�1DWLRQDO�0LQRULW\�6XSSOLHU�'HYHORSPHQW�&RXQFLO��RU�RWKHU�FRPSDUDEOH�FHUWLI\LQJ
RUJDQL]DWLRQ��7KH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�VKDOO�FRQWLQXH�WR�EH�D�FHUWLILHG�0%(�GHVSLWH�DQ\�UHFDSLWDOL]DWLRQ�
PHUJHU��SODQ�RI�VKDUH�H[FKDQJH��UHRUJDQL]DWLRQ��VDOH�RI�DVVHWV��RU�OLTXLGDWLRQ�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�
6KDUHKROGHU�VKDOO�UHPDLQ�WKH�PDMRULW\�VKDUHKROGHU�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�XQWLO�GHDWK�RU�XSRQ�D
3HUPLWWHG�7UDQVIHU�RI�6KDUHV�DV�GHILQHG�LQ�WKH�%\ODZV�

6HFWLRQ����/LDELOLW\�RI�6KDUHKROGHUV�DQG�'LUHFWRUV� 7KH�'LUHFWRUV�DQG�2IILFHUV�RI�WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�UHOLHYHG�RI�WKH�OLDELOLW\�IRU�DFWV�RU�RPLVVLRQV�LPSRVHG�E\�ODZ�RQ�GLUHFWRUV�RU
RIILFHUV�IRU�WKH�DFWV�RU�RPLVVLRQV�RI�WKH�6KDUHKROGHU�LQ�KHU�FDSDFLW\�DV�'LUHFWRU�DQG�3UHVLGHQW�RI
WKH�ERDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV��7KH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�VKDOO�LQGHPQLI\�6KDUHKROGHU�IRU�DQ\�DFWV�RU�RPLVVLRQV�LQ
SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKLV�6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW�WR�WKH�H[WHQW�DOORZHG�E\�ODZ�DQG�DV�SURYLGHG�LQ�WKH
%\ODZV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��7KH�H[LVWHQFH�RU�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKLV�6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW�GRHV
QRW�LPSRVH�SHUVRQDO�OLDELOLW\�RQ�DQ\�VKDUHKROGHU�IRU�WKH�DFWV��RPLVVLRQV��RU�GHEWV�RI�WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ�

6HFWLRQ����8QFHUWLILFDWHG�6KDUHV�:LWKLQ�D�UHDVRQDEOH WLPH�DIWHU�WKH�LVVXDQFH�RU�WUDQVIHU�RI
XQFHUWLILFDWHG�VKDUHV��WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�VKDOO�VHQG�WKH�VKDUHKROGHU�D�ZULWWHQ�VWDWHPHQW�RU�QRWLFH�RI
VWRFN�LVVXDQFH�ZLWK�D�FRQVSLFXRXV�OHJHQG�WKDW�H[SUHVVHV�WKH�H[LVWHQFH�DQG�VXEMXJDWLRQ�RI�WKLV
6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW�



6HFWLRQ����,QWHOOHFWXDO�3URSHUW\� 6KDUHKROGHU�DORQH �DQG�LWV�OLFHQVRUV��ZKHUH�DSSOLFDEOH��VKDOO
RZQ�DOO�ULJKW��WLWOH�DQG�LQWHUHVW��LQFOXGLQJ�DOO�UHODWHG�,QWHOOHFWXDO�3URSHUW\�5LJKWV�RI�WKH
&RUSRUDWLRQ��7KLV�6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW�LV�QRW�D�VDOH�DQG�GRHV�QRW�FRQYH\�WR�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ
DQ\�ULJKWV�RI�RZQHUVKLS�LQ�RU�UHODWHG�WR�DQ\�,QWHOOHFWXDO�3URSHUW\�5LJKWV�RZQHG�E\�WKH
6KDUHKROGHU��7KH�&RPSDQ\�QDPH��WKH�&RPSDQ\�ORJR��DQG�WKH�SURGXFW�QDPHV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH
&RPSDQ\�DUH�WUDGHPDUNV�RI�6KDUHKROGHU�RU�WKLUG�SDUWLHV��DQG�QR�ULJKW�RU�OLFHQVH�LV�JUDQWHG�WR�WKH
&RPSDQ\�WR�XVH�WKHP�ZLWKRXW�WKH�SULRU�ZULWWHQ�FRQVHQW�RI�WKH�6KDUHKROGHU�

6HFWLRQ�����'LVVROXWLRQ�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ� $�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQ WR�WKH�VKDUHKROGHUV�E\�WKH
ERDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV�WR�GLVVROYH�RU�UHYRNH�D�GLVVROXWLRQ�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�PD\�RQO\�EH�YRWHG�LQ�WKH
DIILUPDWLYH�RU�QHJDWLYH�E\�WKH�6KDUHKROGHU�

6HFWLRQ�����$PHQGPHQW� 7KLV�6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW PD\�RQO\�EH�DPHQGHG�WKURXJK�ZULWWHQ
FRQVHQW�RI�WKH�6KDUHKROGHU�

6HFWLRQ�����7HUPLQDWLRQ� 7KLV�6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW VKDOO�WHUPLQDWH�XSRQ�WKH�ILUVW�WR�RFFXU�RI
WKH�IROORZLQJ�HYHQWV�

$� 7KH�ZULWWHQ�DSSURYDO�WR�UHYRNH�WKLV�6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW�E\�WKH�6KDUHKROGHU�
%� 7KH�EDQNUXSWF\�RU�UHFHLYHUVKLS�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��EXW�VXFK�WHUPLQDWLRQ�VKDOO�QRW

H[WLQJXLVK�WKH�ULJKWV�RU�REOLJDWLRQV�RI�WKH�SDUWLHV�KHUHXQGHU�DULVLQJ�RXW�RI�DQ\�HYHQW
RFFXUULQJ�SULRU�WR�VXFK�WHUPLQDWLRQ��

&� 8SRQ�WKH�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�EHFRPLQJ�SXEOLFO\�WUDGHG�RQ�D�SXEOLFO\�UHFRJQL]HG
VWRFN�H[FKDQJH��VXFK�DV�WKH�1HZ�<RUN�6WRFN�([FKDQJH�RU�WKH�$PHULFDQ�6WRFN�([FKDQJH�

6HFWLRQ�����6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW�6XSHUVHGHV�$UWLFOHV�DQG�%\ODZV�

$Q\�SURYLVLRQ�RI�WKH�&RUSRUDWLRQ
V�DUWLFOHV�RU�%\�/DZV�ZKLFK�FRQIOLFWV�ZLWK�DQ\�SURYLVLRQ�RI
WKLV�6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW�LV�GHHPHG�VXSHUVHGHG�E\�WKLV�6KDUHKROGHUV�$JUHHPHQW�

6HFWLRQ�����1RWLFHV�

$OO QRWLFHV RU RWKHU FRPPXQLFDWLRQV JLYHQ RU PDGH KHUHXQGHU VKDOO EH LQ ZULWLQJ DQG VKDOO EH
HLWKHU�KDQG�GHOLYHUHG�RU�VHQW�YLD�HPDLO�RU�8�6��FHUWLILHG�PDLO�WR�WKH�IROORZLQJ�DGGUHVVHV�

7R�WKH�&RPSDQ\�

1DWDOLH�.LQJ
'XQDPLV�&KDUJH��,QF

� ������:����0LOH�5G���6WH�����
6RXWKILHOG��0,������
QNLQJ#GXQDPLVHQHUJ\�FRP

6HFWLRQ�����*HQHUDO�3URYLVLRQV�



D� 7KLV $JUHHPHQW VKDOO EH JRYHUQHG E\ DQG FRQVWUXHG LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK WKH ODZV RI WKH 6WDWH
RI 0LFKLJDQ DQG� WR WKH H[WHQW LW LQYROYHV DQ\ 8QLWHG 6WDWHV VWDWXWH� LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK WKH ODZV
RI�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�

E� ,I D FRXUW RU DQ DUELWUDWRU RI FRPSHWHQW MXULVGLFWLRQ KROGV DQ\ SURYLVLRQ RI WKLV $JUHHPHQW WR
EH LOOHJDO� XQHQIRUFHDEOH� RU LQYDOLG LQ ZKROH RU LQ SDUW IRU DQ\ UHDVRQ� WKH YDOLGLW\ DQG
HQIRUFHDELOLW\�RI�WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�SURYLVLRQV��RU�SRUWLRQV�RI�WKHP��ZLOO�QRW�EH�DIIHFWHG�

F� 7KLV $JUHHPHQW PD\ EH H[HFXWHG LQ WZR RU PRUH FRXQWHUSDUWV� HDFK RI ZKLFK VKDOO FRQVWLWXWH
DQ RULJLQDO� EXW DOO RI ZKLFK� ZKHQ WDNHQ WRJHWKHU� VKDOO FRQVWLWXWH RQH LQVWUXPHQW� DQG VKDOO
EHFRPH HIIHFWLYH ZKHQ RQH RU PRUH FRXQWHUSDUWV KDYH EHHQ VLJQHG E\ HDFK SDUW\ KHUHWR DQG
GHOLYHUHG�WR�WKH�RWKHU�SDUWLHV�

G� 7KLV $JUHHPHQW FRQVWLWXWHV WKH HQWLUH DJUHHPHQW EHWZHHQ WKH &RPSDQ\ DQG WKH 6XEVFULEHU
ZLWK UHVSHFW WR WKH VXEMHFW PDWWHU KHUHRI DQG VXSHUVHGHV DQ\ SULRU RU FRQWHPSRUDQHRXV
XQGHUVWDQGLQJ��UHSUHVHQWDWLRQV��ZDUUDQWLHV�RU�DJUHHPHQWV��ZKHWKHU�RUDO�RU�ZULWWHQ�

>6LJQDWXUH�3DJHV�)ROORZ@�

([HFXWHG�E\�WKH�XQGHUVLJQHG�RQ >GDWH@�
�
�
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1DWDOLH�0��.LQJ��6KDUHKROGHU



TRANSCRIPT OF DUNAMIS CHARGE’S 
REG CF INTRODUCTION VIDEO 

Welcome to Dunamis Charge, where we are on a mission to build a robust and 
reliable electric vehicle charging network that is accessible to drivers everywhere. 
I’m Natalie King, Founder and CEO.  

In just two short years, Dunamis Charge has achieved a number of significant 
milestones. Our accomplishments have been featured in prestigious media outlets 
such as Good Morning America, Forbes and Bloomberg. Our technology has 
received praise from blue chip companies such as Apple, Cummins and Stellantis 
and our policies have been recognized by the Department of Energy, United States 
Congress and the Biden Administration.  

But our mission extends far beyond accolades. We are driven by a deeper purpose, 
to make a difference in this world. We firmly believe that EV charging is the key 
to a cleaner, healthier future. We're committed to ensuring that EV charging is 
accessible and affordable to every driver, everywhere. 

As part of the JOBs Act passed by the Biden Administration, $2.5 billion of the $7 
billion allocated for the buildout of the nation’s EV charging infrastructure is 
designated to disadvantaged communities. Even more exciting was the Biden 
Administration’s most recent announcement of an additional $20 billion dollar 
investment to fund clean energy projects, of which nearly $12 billion has been 
allocated exclusively to disadvantaged communities. The sheer size of this latest 
investment propels our mission even further and is a testament to the 
Administration’s commitment to environmental justice and racial equity.  

Of the dozens of companies competing in this multi-billion-dollar EV industry, 
Dunamis Charge is uniquely positioned to pursue all segments of the market, 
meeting the criteria established by the JOBs Act, we are a minority and women-
owned company whose EV chargers are made in America by American workers. 
We are proud that these are amongst the hallmarks of our mission.  



We will commence the deployment of our Level 2 Commercial EV Chargers both 
independently and in partnerships that will include Apple, Cummins and DTE 
Energy. This will be closely followed by the deployment of our Level 2 
Residential EV chargers and our DC fast chargers. This production and 
deployment schedule was developed in consideration that Level 2 commercial 
and residential chargers make up close to 90% of the market.  

We understand the burden that disadvantaged and urban communities face due to 
environmental pollution. We aim to establish a first mover advantage across the 
nation’s 100 million households, which will also include our urban markets and 
disadvantaged communities.  

At Dunamis Charge, we envision a future of equity and accessibility. To expedite 
our progress, we are currently raising $5 million dollars through a Regulation CF 
offering. This funding will allow us to expand our reach, advance our innovation 
and enhance the charging experience for our valued customers. By investing in 
Dunamis Charge, you are not just supporting a business, you are investing in a 
cleaner, healthier future for all communities. You are endorsing an infrastructure 
where EV charging will no longer be a luxury but a common commodity 
accessible to everyone.  

We’re proud to be a part of the solution to the climate crisis and excited to 
continue working with our partners, customers, employees and investors to make a 
difference. Be a driving force for change with Dunamis Charge. Invest today.



 



 



 



 



 

 



 
 



 



 

 
 



 



 

 
 



 
 



 



 
 



 
 



 
 



 



 



 



 



 

 
 
 


